
 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Members of Neogrowth Credit Private Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Neogrowth Credit Private Limited 
(the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of 
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), and the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, 
and its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Other Matter 
 
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these 
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements as per Audit report dated May 12, 2021. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,  
 

 



 

 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  
 

Sr 
No 

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 
 

Impairment of financial assets (including provision for expected credit loss) 
(as described in note 8 and 42 of the Ind AS financial statements) 

The Company’s impairment provision for financial 
assets (designated at amortised cost and fair value 
through other comprehensive income) is based on 
the expected credit loss approach (‘ECL’) laid 
down under ‘Ind AS 109 Financial instruments’. 
ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their 
life, considering reasonable and supportable 
information about past events, current conditions, 
and forecasts of future economic conditions which 
could impact the credit quality of the Company’s 
loans and advances. 
 
In the process, a significant degree of judgement 
has been applied by the management for: 
 

• Grouping of borrowers on the basis of 
homogeneity given the variety of products; 
 

• Staging of loans and estimation of behavioural 
life; 
 

• Calculation of past default rates; 
 

• Assigning rating grades to loans for which 
external rating is not available; 
 

• Calibrating scores-linked probability of default 
to align with past default rates; 
 

• Calibrating the loss given default where the 
impairment provision is calculated on a pool 
level; 
 

• Applying macro-economic factors to arrive at 
forward looking probability of default; 
 

• Significant assumptions regarding the 
probability of various scenarios and discounting 
rates for different loan products. 

 

 

• Read and assessed the Company’s accounting 
policy for impairment of financial assets and its 
compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance 
framework approved by the Board of Directors 
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines 
issued on 13th March 2020. 
 

• Tested the operating effectiveness of the 
controls for staging of loans based on their past-
due status. Tested a sample of performing (stage 
1) loans to assess whether any Significant 
Increase in Credit Risk (‘SICR”) or loss 
indicators were present requiring them to be 
classified under stage 2 or 3. 
 

• Performed tests of details, on a sample basis and 
inspected the repayment schedule from the 
underlying borrower agreements and collections 
made on the due dates which formed the basis 
of the staging of loans. 
 

• Tested the ECL model and computation for its: 
o Model/methodology used for various loan 
products including; 
 
o Management’s grouping of borrowers on 
basis of different product lines and customer 
segments with different risk characteristics; 
 
o Various assumptions for calculation of 
expected loss viz. probability of default, loss 
given defaults, exposure at default, discounting 
factors applied by the management along with 
Management’s governance process and 
documentation of its assumptions;  
 
o Basis of floor/minimum rates of provisioning 
applied by the Company for loan products with 
inadequate historical defaults; 
 
o We performed test of details of the inputs 
information used in the ECL computation, on a 
sample basis. 
 

• Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation 
of ECL provision performed by the Company. 
 

• Performed analytical procedures by determining 
various ratios or percentage-based measures to 
review overall reasonableness of the estimate 
determined by the management. 
 

• Assessed disclosures included in the Ind AS 
financial statements in respect of expected credit 
losses. 



 

 

2 
 

IT systems and controls 

 
The reliability and security of IT systems play a key 
role in the business operations and financial 
accounting and reporting process of the Company. 
Since large volume of transactions are processed 
daily, the IT controls are required to ensure that 
applications process data as expected and that 
changes are made in an appropriate manner. 
 
Any gaps in the IT control environment could 
result in a material misstatement of the financial 
accounting and reporting records. 
 
Therefore, due to complexity of the IT 
environment, the assessment of the general IT 
controls and the application controls specific to the 
accounting and preparation of the financial 
information is considered to be a key audit matter. 

 
We performed the following procedures for testing 
IT general controls and for assessing the reliability 
of electronic data processing, assisted by specialised 
IT auditors: 
 

• The aspects covered in the IT General Control 
audit were (i) User Access Management (ii) 
Programme Change Management (iii) Other 
related ITGCs – to understand the design and 
test the operating effectiveness of such controls; 
 

• Assessed the changes that were made to the key 
systems during the audit period and assessing 
changes that have impact on financial reporting; 
 

• Tested the periodic review of access rights. We 
inspected requests of changes to systems for 
appropriate approval and authorisation; 
 

• Performed tests of controls (including other 
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on 
the IT application controls and IT dependent 
manual controls in the system; 
 

• Tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
compensating controls, where deficiencies were 
identified and, where necessary, extended the 
scope of our substantive audit procedures. 

 
Other Information 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the management and the Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board 
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of  
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 
 



 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.  
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial Statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the financial 
statements. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 

 



 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act; 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 

 
(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) 

of the Act, in our opinion, according to the information and explanation give to us, the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company as it is a private limited company, and  

 
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position.  
 

 
 
 



 

 

ii. The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts - Refer Note 6 to the financial statements.  
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  
 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 49(A) to the financial statement, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company, or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 49(B) to the financial statement, no funds have been received by 
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.  
 
(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-
statement. 

 
v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend with respect to equity share 

capital during the year. 
 
 
For ASA & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006 

                                    
Prateet Mittal 
Partner 
Membership No. 402631 
UDIN: 22402631AJQEEF8167 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 26, 2022  



 

 

Annexure- A referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ of our report of even date 
 

(i)  a) A) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 
performed by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 
 

B) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 
performed by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets.  

 
 b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the 

management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our 
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at 
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  
 

c) The Company does not have immovable properties (other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
d) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during 
the year. 

 
e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

  
(ii)  a) The Company does not hold any physical inventories during the year. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits (i.e Cash Credit /Overdraft 
facility) in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions 
on the basis of security of current assets (i.e. loan assets). According to information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or 
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

 
(iii)  a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the principal business of the Company is to 
give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 

performed by us, we are of the opinion that the guarantees provided, security given 
and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of 
loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest. The Company has not made any investment made during the year. 
 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, in respect of loans given by the 
Company, the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
the repayments or receipts of principal amount and interest have been regular except 
for the following: 
 

Name of the 
entity  

Amount 
(Principal and 
interest to be 
given 
separately)  

Due Date  Extent of 
Delay  
(no. of 
days/ 
months)  

Remarks, if any  

Number of 
customers 
not paying 
on regular 
basis – 
4264*. 
 
(*Customers 
having day-
past-dues of 
more than 
30.) 

Principle 
amount – Rs. 
24562.03 
lakhs 
 
Interest 
amount – Rs. 
3420.45 lakhs 

Respective 
Due dates 
maintained 
in system 

More than 
30 days. 
 
(Respectiv
e Delays in 
respect of 
each 
customer 
is 
maintained 
in system) 

Company is NBFC 
with 20,868 
customers having 
active loan accounts 
as at 31st March 
2022. The details of 
all the due dates and 
delays thereon are 
maintained in the 
system. 

 
Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party 
during the year. 
 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 
performed by us, there is no overdue amounts for more than ninety days in respect 
of the loans given by the Company except an amount of Rs 15,859.67 lakhs (principal 
amount) and Rs. 2,756.12 lakhs (interest) overdue for more than ninety days as at 
March 31, 2022. In our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company 
for recovery of the principal and interest.  
Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party 
during the year. 
 

 
 



 

 

 e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the principal business of the Company 
is to give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not 
applicable. 
 

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans 
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 
any terms or period of repayment. 

 
(iv)  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company is registered as a non-banking finance company 
to which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, during the financial year, the 
Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, paragraph 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

  
(vi)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the services provided by it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not 
applicable.  
 

(vii)  a) According to the information provided and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, cess and other 
material statutory dues applicable to it. There are no material outstanding statutory dues 
existing as on the last day of the financial year which is outstanding for more than six 
months from the day these becomes payable.  
 

b) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, statutory dues 
relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, income-tax, value added tax, cess or 
other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on 
account of any dispute are as follows: 

 Name of 
the Statute 

Nature 
of Dues 

Amount 
(Rs. In 
lakhs) 

Period Forum Remark 

Goods and 
service Tax 

GST, 
Interest 
and 
Penalty 

Rs.28.04 
lakhs 

Financial 
Year 

2017-18 

Office of the 
Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax, 
(E-626/510), 
LTU-1 

The Company has filed the 
reply against this demand order 
(DRC-01A) on 14th February 
2022 and no further 
communication received from 
department till the date of this 
report. 

 

 

 



 

 

(viii) ( According to the information provided and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 
 

(ix) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans and borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to the lenders during the 
year. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been 
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 

performed by us, term loans were applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 
 
d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

 
e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture 

as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
f) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture 

as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(x) a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

b) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private 
placement of shares or preferential allotment of equity shares (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) during the year. In respect of convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible) made during the year, the Company has duly complied with the 
requirements of section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. The proceeds from issue 
of convertible debentures have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised. 
 

(xi) a)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and based upon 
the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements, we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 

 



 

 

b) According to the information and explanations available with us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government. 
 

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company during the year. 

 
(xii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 

Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 
entered with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and details have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.  

 
(xiv) a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 

performed by us, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business. 

 
b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the 

period under audit. 
 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 
to the Company. 
 

(xvi) a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company, as required, is 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. 

 
c) The Company is not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the 

Order are not applicable. 

 
(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 

the financial statements of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses in the 
immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 4,588 lakhs. No cash losses were 
incurred in the financial year. 

 

 



 

 

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, and as per the 
communication shared by the outgoing auditors, they have not raised any issues, objections 
or concerns. The previous auditors have completed their term of appointment as per RBI 
Circular no. 2021-22/25 dated 27 April 2021. Accordingly, they have rotated out as statutory 
auditors of the Company after limited review for the half year ended 30 September 2021.  

 
(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of 
the Order are not applicable. 

 
 
For ASA & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006 

                                      
Prateet Mittal 
Partner 
Membership No. 402631 
UDIN : 22402631AJQEEF8167 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Neogrowth Credit 
Private Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

 



 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For ASA & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006 

                                     
Prateet Mittal 
Partner 
Membership No. 402631 
UDIN: 22402631AJQEEF8167 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
  
 



As at
2022NotesParticulars

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022

ASSETS
1 r Financial assets

'Cash and cash equivalents
: Bank balance other than above
: Derivative financial inslruments
; Receivables

Trade receivables
Loans
lnvestmenls

: Other financial assets

2 Non-financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other intangible assets
Other non-fi nancial assets

Total assets

II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1 :Financial liabilities

r Derivative fi nancial instrumenis
:Trade Payables

: (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
, enterprises

' (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

,Debl securities
i Borrowings (other than debt securities)
I Other financial liabilities
I

2 ! Non-financial liabilities
,Provisions

non-fi nancial liabilities
liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.

As per our report of even daie

For ASA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

per Prateet Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 402631
Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 26,2022

March 3{,

9,042,37
4,842.O5

595.26

304.60
1 ,37 ,971.77

2,891.65

5,928.81
147.24

2,080.21
60.40

'1,389.76 l

,65,254.'t2.

:)

6.26

10.76

1,017 .24

79,297.94
50,079.59
3,496.32

808.72
262.21

1,34,979.04

1,800.06
28,475.02
30,275.08

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

({ in Lakhs}

As at,
March 31,2021 - Restated:

4
5
o
7

9
12

32
10

11

13

14

I

I

i

;

I

:

5,453.22
25,807.81

0.0.1

1,20,766.65
8,255.93
1,954.13

4,524.06
172.13

2,636.39
46.25

979.33

1,70,595-91;

26.65

88,842.98
41,285.73
4,228.95

15

16

18

19
20

21

22

.5816

805.83
230.09

1,36,581.81
Other

lTotal

1,800.06,
32,214.04
34,014.10

1,70,595.91

tto

9.

Tanushri Yewale
Company Secretary
(M.No A31273)
Place: Mumbai

Nayyar
- time Director & CEO
Mumbai

Piyush Khaitan
Managing Director
(DlN ooo02579)
Place: Bengaluru

Deepak Goswami
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

1,65,254.',12

Dhruv Khaitan
Chairman
(DlN 00002584)
Place: Mumbai

Dale: May 26,2022



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Pa rticu la rs

Revenue from operations
(i) lnterest income
(ii) Fee and commission income
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes

(l) Total revenue from operations

: 
(? in Lakhs)

March 31,; For the year ended March 31,
2022i 2021 - Restated

For the year ended
Notes

23
24
25

26

27
28
29
30
31

35,812.87
286.89

59.39
36,159.15

1 16.59
36,275.74

15,341.70
14,730.38
6,775.29

781.42
3,824.41

4'.t,453.20

(5,1i7.46t

15,177.461

223.15

(1,455.20)

(3,945.41)

31,135.o6

30,689.94
341.22
103.90

195.39
31,330.45

13,571 .68 i

12,45A.A4
7,185.75

964.47
.81

36,929.55

(5,599.10)

(5,599.10)

(1,412.o2)

(4;1s7.08)

(5.71)
1.44

(4.271

(4.271

(0.53)
0.13

(0.40)

(4.67)

0t)
(ilr )

Other income
Total income (l + ll)

(tv)

(v)

(vl)

(vil)

(vilr)

Expenses
(i) Finance cost
(ii) lmpairment on financial instruments
(iii) Employee benefit expense
(iv) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
(v) Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll - lV)

Exceplional items

Profit / (loss) before tax (V - Vl)

Tax expense:
(1) Currenttax
(2) Earlier year adjustments
(3) Deferred tax charge / (credit)

(lx) Profit / (loss) for the year (Vll - Vlll)

(X) Other comprehensive income
A ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benetit plan

lncome tax impact

Total (A)

B ltems that will be classified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge

Net Gain / (Loss) for lhe year
lncome tax impact

Net gain/{loss} on cash flow hedge

Total {B)
Other comprehenslve lncome (A + B)

Total comprehensive income (lX + X)

Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.)
Diluted (Rs.)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For ASA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chariered Accountanls
lCAl Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

per Prateet Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 402631
Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 26,2Q22

16.421

15.421

(5.44)
(5.44)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

32
32
32

(8.58)
2.16

(0.401

(4,191.75)(xt)

(xil)
(6.58)
(6.58)

JJ
33

Dhruv Khaitan
Chairman
(DrN 00002584)
Place: Mumbai

Arun Nayyar
Whole - time Director & CEO
Place: Mumbai

Piyush Khaitan
Managing Director
(DrN 00002579)
Place: Bengaluru

Deepak Goswami
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Tanushri Yewale
Company Secretary
(N4.No 431273)
Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 26,2022



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED

Stalement of changes in Equityforthe y€ar ehded March 31, 2022

(t in Lakhs)

A. Equlty Share Capital

As al March 3'l , 2022

Balance as atApril t,202'l

:change in Equity share
: capital due lo prior
: petiod erro6

(4,555.30)

at March
!1,m2L:

trloo 09 
,

i

Ma.ch i

2021 
i

1,800.06 i

As at March 31, 202'l

Balance as at April 1, 2020

Changes in equity
share capihl durihg

Balsnce
31,

6,355.36 (4,55s.30):

2020 - 202'l

Share optiohs Securitles prcmium

ouGlanding account

888.96 42,s18.24

42,518.24

Cash flow
Retained Eamings hedge

teserye

B. Other Equity

As at Ma.ch 31, 2022

I

Equity component of : 
.

compound tinancial :

instrumeni ! Statutory

(t in Lakhs)

TotalPadiculars

Balance as at April 1, 2021

Changes ln accounling policy/pdor period erroF
Restat€d balance at th€ beginning ofthe curent
reporting pgriod

Dividends
ESOP Cosl recognised during the year
Profit / (loss) forthe yearafterincome tax
olher Comprehensive lncome forthe year before

income tax
Less: lncome Tax

Total Compr€hehsive lncome foithe year

Balance as at March 3'1,2022

As at March 3'1,2021

Balance as atApril l, 2020

Changes in accounting policy/pdor period orors

Reslaled balance atthe beginning ofthe previous

reporting pedod

Dividends
EsoP Cost rocognised during the year
Prolit / (oss) forthe yearafter income lax
Other Comprehensive lncome forlhg year beforc
income tax
Less: lncome Tax

roai dompretrensive tncoml fJrthe period

Balance as at March 3'1, 2021 - Restated

tesede

202,15

202.45

202.45

Actuarial gains/
(losses)

4,555.30

4,555.30

(r4,514.84)

(1,178.04)

(15,692.88)

t_au,

(3,94s.41)

s8.73

1.44

40.17

33,390.64 :

(1,176.60):

sz,ztq,oq I

(0.46),
56.85'

(3,945.41):

200.45 :

oo our,

1S,ZrS.OZl,(3,94s.87) 156.42

('t9,638.75)

(298.20)

(298.20)888.96

56 85

209.03

(52.61)

(8.s8)

2.16

: 4,555.30 42,518.24

(6.42):

:

rs.zs i



PartlculaE

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITEO

Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31,2022

r Operating activilies
: Profit / (Loss) before tax
tAdjustmenb to reconcile prclit hefore tax to net cash flows:
: Depreciation, amortisation and impaiment
: Fair value movement of embedded derivative
: Non cash adjustment made for treation and foreclosure of Righlof-use assets
i Effective lnterest Rate adjuslment in Borrowjngs

lnterest lncome on security deposits

I lnterest on Lease liability

, lnterest on Debt Securities
: lnterest on Borowings
i Employee Benefit expenses
I Profit on sale of prcperty, plan and equipment

, lmpaiment on linancial instruments
, Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan

, Net Gain on fair value of lnvestments

Worklng capital changes
(lncrease) / Decrease in Loan
(lncrease) / Decrease in Re@ivables
(lncrease) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(lncrease) / Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets
(lncrease) / Decrease in Bank balance other than cash and €sh equivalents
lncrease / (Decrease) in Trade payable

lncrease / (Decrease) in Otherlinancial liabilities
lncrease / (Decrease) in Provisions
lncrease / (Decrease) in Other non-financial Liabilities

lnterest Paid on Debt Securities and Bonowings

lncome ta paid / refund re€ived (Net of refunds / payments)

Net cash flows used in operatlng activlties

lnvesting activities
Proceeds lrom sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from redemption of lnvestments at tair value through profit and loss (net)

lnvestments in Mutual Fund at fair value through profit and loss

Net cash flows used in investing acllvities

:'
: Financing activities
: Debt securities issued
: Debt securities repaid
: Borowings olher than debt securities laken
: Borowings other than debt securities repaid
lnterest paid on lease liability

: Principal portion of lease liability except short tem lease payments

For the year ended

(t in Lakhs)

For the yearended March 3i,
2021 - Restated

(152.78t
(146.79)
(131.33)
320.O4

9,346.60

March 31,
20221.

:

:

(5,599.

968.47

(s,177.46)

781.42

0)

6.26
I'1.07
97.41

(35.e0)
293.24

10,309.53
3,2U.97

168.56

1 4,730.38
(8.58):

(65.65):

(31,926.96)
(304.58)
(905.25)
(150.04)

20,965.76
(1 33.58)
(312.32')
(1 14.19)

(76.66)

(13,741.00)

(374.66)

i

2.48 |

(76.16):
(44.99) i

(36,883.16):

8,202.91

1 3,075.00

39,685.78
(31

(293.24)
(527.28):

2,551.56
671.04

3.42
12,458.84

(5.71 )
(1 03.e0)

16,560.6'1

5,453.22

(8,75't.27),
(0.01):

(124.24):
(4.90)l

(25,801.90):
240.97
647.98
(20.84)

9.68

(11,321.7s],

5.59
(1 08.87)

86j23.28
(94,275.31),

(8,255.3r)

(8,600.00)i
17,444.85
(9,910.18)

(320.04)
(644.59)

402 39

124,543,s21

23,721.40 .

:

: t'tet cash flows from tinancing activities

r Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

:

:Cash and cash equivalents at April 1

iCash and cash equivalents at the end (refer Note 4)

!

i Operational cash flom from
ilnterest paid

Short-term lease payments

interest and dividends

Notes :

- The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect melhod as set out in lnd AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'
- Components of €sh and cash equivalents are disclosed in Note 4.

- For disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising frcm financing activities, refer Note 37.

As per our report ot even date

For ASA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Fim Registration No: 00957'1 N/N500006

(r,91

3,58|q

5,453.22

ii,otz.zt

1 3,741.00
645

75't,321

per Prateet Mittal
Partner
Memberehip No. 402631
Pla@: Mumbai
Dale: May 26,2022

Dhruv Khaitan
Chaiman
(DlN 00002s84)
Pla@: Mumbai

Arun Nayyar
Whole - time Director & CEO
Place: lvlumbai

Tanushri Yewale
Company Secretary
(M.No 431273)
Pla@: Mumbai
Dale: May 26,2022

Piyush Khaitan
l\ranaging Director
(DrN 00002579)
Pla@: Bengaluru

Deepak Goswami
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

c

+

g)

o

,691

(11,107

-44

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Match31,2022

Accounting Policies

Note 1: Corporate lnformation

NeocroMh Credit Private Limited (the 'Company' or 'Neocrowth') is a Private Limited Company domiciled in lndia and incorporated on May '17, 1993 under the provisions ol
Companies Act, I 956. The Company has received a Certifi€te of Registration from the Reserue Bank of lndia ('RBl') under Section 45 - lA of the Reserue Bank lndia Act, 1 934 on
September'13,2001 to commence / carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial lnstitution ('NBFC') without a@epting public deposits. Presently the Company is engaged in
providing business loans to small and medium enterprise. The financial statements has been approved in its Board meeting held on May 26,2022

Note 2: Basls of preparation and presentation

a. Basis of preparation

The linanclal statements of the company have been prepared in amordan@ with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ('lnd AS Rules') (as amended from time to time).

period beginning on or after April 1, 2021. The amendment encompasses certain additional disclosure requirements. The Company has applied and incorporated the requirements
of amended Division lll of Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 201 3, to the extent appli€ble while preparing these financial statements.

Presentation of fi nancial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division lll of the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (noHurrent) is presented in "Note 36: Maturity Profile".

- The normal course of business
- The event of default
- The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its @unterparties

b. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain flnancial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

market participants at the measurement date.

c. Functional and presentation currency

The flnancial statements are presented in lndian Rupees which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary emnomic environment in which the
Company operates and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, ex€pt when otheNise indieted.

Note 3: Significant accounting policles

3.1. Use of estimates, iudgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the lnd AS requires ihe management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to a@ounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

3.2, Recognition of lncome

Revenue (other than for those items to which lnd AS 109 Financial lnstruments are appli€ble) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. lnd AS 1 15
Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of aGounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue
recognition guidance found within lnd ASs.
The company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in lnd AS 1 1 5:

Step 1: ldentify contract(s) wlth a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to provide seryice to the customer

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or seruices to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price lo the performan@ obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performane obligation, the Company allocates the

performan@ obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when or as the Company satisfies a performane obligation.

a.) lnterest and similar lncome

when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net €rrying amount of the financial asset.

ElR. The company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it

charges).

carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through lnterest income in the
statement of profit and loss.

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assels other than credit-impaired assets. When a flnancial asset becomes
credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as'Slage 3', lhe company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the
asset. lf the flnancial assets cures and is no longer credilimpaired, the company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

of the linancial



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

b.) All other charges such as cheque return charges, overdue charges etc are recognised on realization basis. These charges are treated to asrue on realization, due to the
uncerlainty of their realization.

c.) Revenue from fee-based activities are recognized as and when the seryies are rendered. Fees eamed from contract with customer is recognised point in time when

a certain performane are recognised afler fulfilling the corresponding crjteria.

d.) The Company designates cerlain flnancial assets for subsequent measurement at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FWPL). The Company recognises gains on fair value
change of tinancial assets measured at FWPL and realised gains on deremgnition of financial asset measured at FVTPL on net basis.

3.3. Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)

An item is recognis€d as an asset, if and only if, it is probable lhat the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost €n be measured

less a@umulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When signifl€nl parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be repla@d in regular interuals, the Company
recognises such parts as separate component of assets. When an item of PPE is repla@d, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and cost of the new
item of PPE is recognised. The expenditures that are incurred afrer the item of PPE has been put to use, such as repairs and maintenane, are normally charged to the statement

benelits associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset's carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated using the Written Down Value (WDV) method and Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the remaining useful life of assets estimated by the
management.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulare

I arcahnl.J lmnrovements

Sl lN lnfor

Method

:rrrnilrra .q Firfirrcs

5 vears

3.6. Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of lhe arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment
ofthe arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

4 vears

5 vears

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

No salvage value has been estimated in €se of license property improvement work and advan@ suite.

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future eonomic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the differen@ between the net disposal proceeds and the carring amount of the asset) is recognised in other operating income in the Statement of profit and loss in
the year in which the asset is derecognised.

The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordane with the requirements for detemining when a
performan@ obligation is satisfied in lnd AS 11 5.

3.4. lntanglble assets

amortisation and aGumulated impairment loss. lntangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful emnomic life. The company considers that the
useful life of an intangible asset will not ex@ed 6 years from the date when the asset is available for use.

6 vears

future emnomic beneflts embodied in the asset are considered to modiry the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in ac€ounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure foms part of carrying value of another
asset.

3.5. lmpairment of non-financlal assets

An assessment is done at each Balane Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of asset is determined. lf the carrying value of relevant asset is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

Company as a lessee
ldentifying a lease

Depreciatlon

use of an identifled asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company assesses whether:
i. The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
ii. The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the emnomic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use, and
iii. The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.
This policy is applied to contracls entered into, or changed, on or after April 1, 2018
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to

relative stand-alone prices.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Recognltion of right of use asset

The Company recognises a right of use asset at the lease @mmencement date of lease and comprises of the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred.

Subsequent measurement of right of use asset
The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or

lease liability.

Recognitlon of lease liability

incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments are apportioned between the finan@ charges and reduction of the lease
liability using the incremental borrowing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. Whenever the
lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carring amount of the right ot use asset or is recorded in protit or loss of the carring amount of the right
of use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short.term leases and leases of low.value assets
The company has elected by class of underlying asset to not recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months and leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value.
In €se of short-tem leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the company has elected not to apply the requirements of lnd AS 1 16 and the lease
payments associated with those leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis.

3.7. Retirement and other employee beneflts

Retirement benefit in the fom of provident fund is a defined contrjbution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related servi€. lf the contribution payable to the scheme
for servie received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the

to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity
The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in lndia, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for detemining the present value of obljgation, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the
Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and lhe return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net delined benetlt liability), are
recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they o€ur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to pront and loss in subsequent periods. The effect of any planned amendments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Short-tem employee benetits

such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted amount of short-tem employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the seryices rendered by employees
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

Long.term employee benefits

Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balan€ Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit l\rethod. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experiene adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compensated absence
Compensated absence which is a defined benefit, is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date carried out by an independent actuary.

Share-based Payment Arrangements

Share-based Payment Arrangements estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate valuation model. The Company measures the cost
of equity-settled transactions with Option holdere using Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date.

lnputs into the valuation model, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield.

The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Corporation's Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date using Black Scholes

based on lhe number of grants expected to vest, with coresponding increase in equity.

3.8. Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentational currency - The flnancial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the company.

arising on non-trading activities are taken to other income/expense in the statement of prollt and loss.
Normonetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'1, 2022

3.9. Borrowing cost

exchange differenes arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest @st.

capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing @sts are expensed in the period they occur.

3.10. Taxes

lncome tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current / Deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Prolit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business
combination or to an item which is recognjzed directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case the related income tax is also recognised a6ordingly. Defered tax

right to offset and it is the Company's intention to settle on a net basis

i) Current Taxes

of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in a@ordanc with applicable

income / expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current tax expense. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those lhat are
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in lndia where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject lo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ii) Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are remgnised for all taxable temporary ditferences, except:

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Defered tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporar differences, the carr foMard of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry foMard of unused tax credits and unused tax losses €n be utilised except:

When the defered tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable proflt or loss

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

tax asset to be recovered.

tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

recognised in @relation to the underlying transaclion either in OCI or directly in equity.

the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Curent and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax benetits or expenses in the Statement of profit and loss except for tax related to the fair value re-measurement of
financial assets classilied through other comprehensive income, foreign exchange differences and the net movement on cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited to Other

Company also recognises the tax consequences of payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are classifled as equity, directly in equity.

3.11. Earnlngs per share
Basic eamings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinar shares
outstanding during the year.
As per lnd AS 33, Para 23 " Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per
share from the date the contract is entered into. Consequently CCPS and CCD have been induded in the computation of Basic EPS.

tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.12. Share based payment

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar servi@s are measured at ihe fair value of equity instrments at the grant date. Details regarding
detemination of the fair value of equity settled share based payments transactions are set out in Note 34.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting peraod, based on the company's

of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such lhat the cumulative expenses
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based payments reserue.
On cancellation or lapse of option granted to employees, the compensation cost charged to statement of profit & loss is credited with corresponding decrease in equity.
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NEOGROWTH CREOIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements forthe year ended Match31,2022

3.13. Provisions and other Contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

e@nomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of ihe time value of money is

and loss net of any reimbursement in other operating expenses.

embodying economic benefils is remote.
A mntingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resour@s embodying economic benefits is remote.

3.14. Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Company recognises dividends on ordinary shares and related dividend tax as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Proposed dividends on equity shares which are subject to approval at the annual general meeting are not recognised as a liability (including tax thereon) and is disclosed as an
event after the reporting date.

3.15. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and €sh equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short{erm deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.16. Cash flow statement

Cash fows are reported using the indirect method, whereby proft / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accrals of
past / future €sh receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

3.17. lnsurance claims

lnsurance claims are a@rued for on the basis of claims admitted and/or to the extent there is no uncertainty in recejving the claims. The Company re-assesses the claims made at
each reporting period for re@verability.

3.18. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company a@ounts the expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility as required under the Companies Act 2013 as a charge to the statement of profit and
loss.

3.19. Determination of Fair Value
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in ac@rdance with the accounting policies mentioned above at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the signifi€n@ of inputs used in the measurement).

of relevant obseruable inputs and minimising the use of unobseruable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

has a@ess to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the
identi€l assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobseryable inputs which are signill€nt to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financlal instruments - Those that includes one or more unobseryable input where there is little market activity for the assevliability at the measurement date that is
signifi€nt to the measurement as a whole.

3.20. Financialinstruments

liabilities are remgnised when the Entity bemmes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial Assets

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company @mmits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four €tegories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCI).

Debt instrumenls, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FWPL).

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A'debt instrument' is measured at amortised cost lf both the following conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

b) The contractual terms of the flnancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March31,2022

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into aGount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is
included in linance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The measurement of sedit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described below.

Business model: The business model reflects how the company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the company's objective is solely to collect
the contraclual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and €sh flows arising from the sale of assets. lf neither of these is applicable (e.9.
tinancial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of'othei business model and measured at FWPL,

See! Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual msh flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial

linancial asset is classmed and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortised cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

Effective lnterest method - The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant

cost is calculated based on the original or latest re-estimated EIR and the change is recorded as'lnterest and similar income'for financial assets. lncome is recognised on an
effeclive interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt lnstrument - lnvestments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other @mprehensive income where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstandingt and
b) Are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both ollecting @ntractual €sh flows and selling llnancial assets.

changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. lmpairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange

lhe income statement. The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model as applied to financial assets at amortised cost. The
expected credit loss model is desqibed below :

Financlal lnstrument measured at fair value through profit or loss

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FWPL. ln addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FWPL are measured at FWPL.

different bases.

Company's investment are classified as FWPL, if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near tem, or forms part of a portfolio of

derjvatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the income statement as they arise. Where a financial asset is measured at fair value, a
credit valuation adjustment is included to refect the credit worthiness of the counterparty, representing the movement in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk.

Equity instruments

evidence a residual interest in the issuefs net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares,

Financial liabilities

lnitial Measurement

financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Embedded Derivative
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the esh flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand alone derivative. An embedded derivative euses some or all of the €sh flows that otheMise would be required by the contract to be
modified acccording to a specific interest rate, value of an underlying security, or other variable.

effective hedging intstruments.

Modification of loans

The company sometimes renegotiates or otheMise modilies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the company assesses whether or not the new
terms are substantially different to the original terms.

determining whether a signifi€nt increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the company also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-

carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on de recognition. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI).
lf the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in de recognition, and the company recalculates the gross carrying
revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modillcation gain or loss in profit or loss to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modafied cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or crediladjusted effective
originated credit-impaired llnancial assets.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March3'1,2022

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts whose value is derived from one or more underlying price, index or other variable, and typically comprise of instrments such as
swaps, foMard rate agreements, futures and options. All derivatives are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value and are classilied as trading except where they are

contract. Derivatives are €rried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

lmpairment of fi nancial assets

The company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss as against hitherto IRAC norms of RBl.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in a@ordanc with the contract and all the €sh flows that the company expects to receive
(i.e., all €sh shortfalls), dismunted at the original effective interest rate.

results from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.
The company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset such as investments, loans and advances, non-fund based limits not designated as FWPL and security
deposits held at amortised cost and flnancial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are tested for impairmeni based on evidenc or

deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

The company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLS) for the following categories of financial assets that are not measured at fair value
through protit or loss:

' debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income,
.loan commitments; and
. Financial guarantee contracts.
No ECL is recognised on equity investments.

PD estimation process

Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default in a homogenous pool of loans, over a '12 month time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on

assets, a PD of 100% is applied.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

Exposure at Default is considered as 100% of Outstanding balance in respect of loan receivables.

ln case of undrawn loan commitments, a credit conversion factor of 75 % is applied for expected drawdown. For credit impaired assets (i.e. Stage 3 assets), an EAD factor of
100% is applied.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

3 assets). after event of default (& till the time the exposure is written off) including from the realization of any secudty.

Financial assets are classified through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 'l: 12-months ECL

upon origination are classilied under this stage. The company has assessed that all standard advances and advances upto 30 days default (SMA 0) would fall under this category.
For these assets, '12-month ECL are recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the gross €rrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL- not credit lmpaired
Financial instrments that have had a signifl€nt increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classilied under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as signifl€nt

asset.

Stage 3: Lifetlme ECL - credit impaired
All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have orcurred are classified in

cost (net of provision) rather than the gross crrying amount.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

is 'credit-impaired'when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occured.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following obseruable data:
a) Signifi@nt financial difficulty of the borower or issuer;
b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on tems that the company would not consider otheMise,
d) lt is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e) The disappearanc of an active market for a security be€use of linancial ditflculties.

Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECL reflects:
a) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes
b) The time value of money

conditions.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to linanclal statements for the year ended Ma(ch31,2022

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are measured as follows:

effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the company in accordan@ with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects
to receive.
- Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted by the effective interest rate.
- Undrawn loan commilments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows lhat are due to the company if the commitment is drawn down and the

€sh flows that the company expects to receive.

ECLS are recognised using a provision lor doubtful debts account in profit and loss. ln the €se of debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the measurement of ECLs is based on the three-stage approach as applied to financial assets at amortised cost. The company recognises the provision charge in profit and loss,
with the coresponding amount re@gnised in other comprehensive income, with no reduction in the €rrying amount of the asset in the balan@ sheet.

Write-ofi

borrower does not have assets or sources of income that muld generate sufficient msh flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, flnancial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the company's procedures for recovery ol amounts due.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement offinancial position

Loss allowan@s for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;
b) Loan commitments and tinancial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;
c) Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the company cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separalely from
those on lhe drawn component: the company presents a combined loss allowane for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the drawn mmponent. Any excess of the loss allowan€ over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision, and
d) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowane is recognised in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial llabllitles

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual €sh flows from the asset expire or it transfers its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the flnancial

Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financlal liabilities

loss

Offsefting

sheet when the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously in all of the
following circumstances:

. The normal course of business

. The event of default
' The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

just in the event of default.

Hedge Accountlng

The company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign currency. ln order to manage particular risks, the company applies hedge
amounting for transactions that meet specified criteria.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the

hedging/ emnomic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the efectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash fows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or €sh flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the linancial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are acmunted for, as dessibed below:

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised flm commitment, or an identified,portion of such an asset,
liability or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect prolit or loss.

value changes. Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item in
the balance sheet and is also recognised in the statement of proflt and loss in net gain on fair value changes.

items recorded at amortised cost, the aeumulated fair value hedge adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item on termination of the hedge a@ounting relationship is
amortised over the remaining tem of the original hedge using the recalculated EIR method by recalculating the EIR at the date when the amortisation begins. lf the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised fair value
adjustment is re@gnised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statemenis for the year ended Match31,2022

Cash flow hedges

A €sh fow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some
future int€rest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect proflt or loss.

(cash flow hedge reserve). The lneffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in net gain/loss on
fair value changes in the profit and loss statement.

When the hedged Gsh flow affects lhe statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or

and losses previously recognised in OCI are reversed and included in the initial @st of the asset
or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, orwhen a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge aeounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognised in OCI at that time re-mains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged fore€st transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a
fore€st transaction is no longer expected to occur, lhe cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately transferred to the statement of prolit and loss.

Cost of hedging

The company also may separate foMard element and the spot etelnent of a foMard contract and designate as the hedging instrument only the change in the value of the spot
element of a foMard contract. Similady currency basis spread may be separated and excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument.
When an entity separates the foMard element and the spot element of a foMard contract and designates as the hedging instrument only the change in the value of the spot
element of the foMard contract, or when an entity separates the foreign currency basis spread from a financial instrument and excludes it from the designation of that linancial
instrument as the hedging instrument, such amount is recognjsed in OCI and a@umulated as a separate component of equity under Cost of hedging reserue. These amounts are
reclassified to the statement of proflt or loss acount as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for loss that it incur because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

method (as per guidance in lnd AS 109) or the amount originally recognised less, the cumulative amount recognised as income on a straight-line basis.

G(

o
L
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TOTAL 9,042.3'7 i 5,453.22:

Balances with banks earn interest at fixed rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits are made for
varying periods between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and
earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. The Company has not taken bank overdraft against these Bank
deposits, therefore the cash and cash equivalent for cash flow statement is same as cash and cash equivalent given
above.

Note 5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 4: Gash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with bank
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 months

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12
months

Balances wilh banks to the extent held as margin money or security against
the borrowings, guarantees, other commitments

TOTAL

Fixed deposit earns interest at fixed rate based on applicable bank deposit rates.

i

As at
March 31,2022:

'I
.i

55.43 j
i

2,554.53 i
6.432.41 i

I

As ati
March 31,2022

4,842.05

As at:
March 31,202,1 -.

Restatedi

31.75
3,221.47
2,200.00

l

As at:
March 31,2021 -,

Restated,

25,009.85

96797

4,842.05

t

Mumbai

25,807.81

edit



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements forthe yearended March31,ZO22
({ in Lakhs)

Note 6: Derivative financial instruments

The company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include hedges that meet the hedge accounting requirements.

The notional amounts indi€te the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indi€tive of either the market risk or credit risk.

As at

Notional Fair value Notional

3molnts a$9ts amounts
Particulare

Part I

Fair value
liabilities

Notional
amounts

Fair value
assets

Notional
amounts

Fair value
liabilities

4,245.00 (64.08)
(64.08)
90.73

: ' - 16,1.37.2s; . zoos

4,245.00
't1,892.29

6.1: Hedging activities and derivatives

management strategy and how il is applied to manage risk are explained in Nole 44.

6.1.1: Embedded Derivative

subsequently will be carried at fair value through Profit & Loss.

6.1.2 Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

6.1.2.1 Cash flow hedges

17.84 million as on March 31 , 2022 (as on March 31, 2021 USD 22.58 million).

The Company has e@nomically hedged
(i) the foreign currency risk arising from the fixed rate nonlNR borrowing using the cross currency swap, and
(ii) the foreign cunency risk and interest rate risk arising from the floating rate non-lNR borrowing using the cross currency interest rate swap

The swap contracts above effectively convert the cash outflows of the foreign currency borrowing to fixed rate cash outflows in lNR.

dates, principal repayment date etc.).

The ComPany has established a hedge ratio of 1:'l for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the derivative are identical to the hedged risk components.

attributable to the hedged risks.

The hedge ineffectiveness €n arise mainly if there is a change in the credit risk of the Company or the counterparty.

G(eoit

o tV.tnb2i
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 91,2OZz
(? in Lakhsl

Note 6: Derivative financial instruments

and hence such notional gain $rould be nullified atthe time otacfal cash settlement. Hence inqease in equitylo lhe extentof Rs.156.4i (net oftax) lakhs is noiionat in natre

The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheet is as follows:

March31,2022

ParticulaE Notional
amount

Carrying
amount

Line item in
the balance

sheet

Cross Currency lnterest Rate Swaps 8,494.49 397.70
Dedvative
financial

inslruments

Cunenry Swaps 4,245.00 197.56
Derivative
financial

insfumenls

March31,2021

ParticulaF Notional
amount

Carrying
amount

Cross Curency lnterest Rate Swaps 11,A92.29 90.73
Derivative
financial

: insfuments

Cunenry Smps 4,245.OO (64.08)
Derivative
financial

instrumenls

The impact of hedged items on the balance sheet is as follows:

ParticulaF

Commercial Bonowings

The efiect of cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

Particulas

Line item in
the balance

sheet

Cash flow
hedge reserv€

as at March 31,
20?2

Cash flow
hedge reserue

as at March 31,
2027

(141.78) (2s8.20)

Total
gain /

recognised
OCI tor
year

March 31,

Total
Eain /

recognised
OClfor
year

March 31,

Extemal Commercial Borowings 209.03

0)

a

+



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 7: Receivables

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade Receivables ageing

As at
March31,2022

As at
March 31,2021 -

Restated

Particularc

Trade Receivables
Unsecured considered good 304.60

304.60

0.01

0.01

Outstanding tor following periods from due date of payment
; ParticulaF

Unbilled & Not due
Less than 6

months
6 months -i

yeal
1-2

yeans
2-3

years
More than 3

years Total

As al
March31,2022 304.60 304.60

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

March31,2O21 - 0.01 0.01

As al
March31,2022 304.60 0.01 304.6{

TOTAL

March31,2021 -
o^^a^r^!

I
l
: 0.01 0.0'l



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3.1,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 8: Loans (at amortised cost)

Particulars

Term loans
- Gross

iLess: lmpairment loss allowance
itotal - lrtet

isecured by tangible assets
i Unsecured
iTotul - Gro""
Less: lmpairment loss allouance -
Secured

'Total - Net

.Loans in tndia
;i) Public Sector

1ii) Others (Private sector)

lTotal - Gross

)Less: lmpairment loss allowance

iTotal - Net
lLoans outside tndia

lmpairment loss allorrrance

- Net

Summary of loans by stage distribution

Details of Company's Risk Management process and policies are set out in Note 44 - Risk Management.

As at
March31,2O22

As at
March 3'1, 2021 -

Restaled

1,55,917.83
1,55,917.83

17,946.06
1,37,971.77

2,500.o4
1,53,417.79
1,55,917.83

'17,946.06

1,37,971.77

1,55,917.83

1,55,917.83

't 7,946.06

1,37,971.77

1,32,833.41
1,32,833.4'l

12,066.76
1,20,766.65

1,32,833.41
'1,32,833.4'l

12,066.76

1,20,766.65

1,32,833.41

1,32,833.41

12,066.76

1,20,766.65

1,37,971.77 1,20,756.65

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Less: lmpairment loss allowance
carrying amount 1,30,282.52

(4,987.08)
8,760.99

(2,584.87\
16,874.30

(1 0,374.13)
1,55,917.82
(17,e46.0s)

E3,907.21
(2,748.26)

40,428.89
(4,130.s4)

8,497.29
(s,1 87.s5)

1,32,833.39
(12,066.76)

Net carrying amount 1,25,295.44 6,176.12 6,500.17 1,37,971.73 81,158.95 36,298.35 3,309.33 1,20,766.63

Gross Carrying amount and lmpairment loss allowance excludes amounts written off which are still subject to enforcement activig



An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to business loan is, as follows:

For the year ended March 31,2022 For the year ended March 31,2021 - RestatedParticulars
Stage 1 Stage 2

40,428.89

6,438.12'

(27,029.65)
:

(7,591.51) :

1 ,344.71
(2,094.36)
(2,735.21)

l

Stage 3 Total

8,497.29

13,084.68 1,27 ,487.80

(3,686.7s) (e7

Stage I

1,27,279.71

76,038.14

(1,1 8,s02.s4)

'1.60

:

3,976.82

40,1 09.1 5

(3,926.63)

(0.28)
328.27
(21.21)
(37.23)

4,1 36.88

8,122.48

(1,1 35.84)

(1.33)

173.47
(2,798.37)

8,497.29

Total

1,35,393.41 
.

1,24,269.77

(1,23,s6s.01)

(2,864.76)

1,32,833.41

Gross carrying amount opening
balance

New assets originated or purchased 1,07,965.00

repaid
(66,38e.0s)

7,873.19
(1,117 .87)
(1,25s.50)

(700.46)

.283,907 39,32,833.

Assets derecognised
(excluding write offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3
Assets written Off

or

(281 .68) '

(226.8s)
3,349.86

(3,862.25)

0s.45)

:-|

(7

(328.27)
(152.27)

(2e. 1 6)

Gross carrying amount closing
balance 1,30,282.52 8,760.99 r 16,874.30'

noa

1,55,917.82 40,428.8983,907.21 ,

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:

Particulars
Stage {

For the year ended March 31,2022

Stage 2 Total

For the year ended March 31, 2021 - Restated

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

0.50)(7,21

ECL allowance - opening balance

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised
(excluding write offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3
Assets vwitten Off

or repaid

2,748.26

5,238.46 .

(2,3

30.544, 262.36,443.25

12)

.8027,005.65

5,1 87.96

9,733.50

(2,666.20)

(51 .67)
(132.74)

2, 165.53
(3,862.2s)

12,066.76

20,977.61 :

(7,800.38)
:

0.00 '

1.827.O3

(6,281 .84) i

0.02 '

(126.03)
(85.01)
(2s. 1 6)

3,156.78

5,424.79

(6s2.s4)

-0.02 -0.00
'126.03

(12.29) 97.30
(37.23) (2,7e8.37)

10,862.39

11,279.63

(2,864.76)

o

(2

4,

12.33) .85),821 (236.

896.57
(84.e5)

(7e8.47),
(700.46)

(844.90)
217.70

(1,367.06)
(2,735-21 )

ECL allowance - closing balance 4,987.08 2,584.87' 10,374.13

(7,2e7.e2)

17,946.07 2,748.26 4,130.54 5,187.96 12,066.76



lndustry As al
March31,2022 March 31, 2021

Food and Beveraqe 14.660/"
11.70%

ump 7.090/. '.900/o
Groceries 5.51o/o

4.48%
3.51o/o"Elgi.1.1e9Ji19 "g,n"d 9ep"tlg! 9*-o--99 .."..

Contractor 3.69%
Mobile 3.90%

3.16%
3.45o/o 2.690/"
0.43o/o

1.740/" 2.29o/o
1.640/" 1.92o/o

-ogistics 1.90% 1.38o/o

31.73o/o

of loans and

FM

and

Others

Note:

Others consist a list of more than 50 industries, over which this portion of the portfolio is distributed-

c.(edr.. o

:D

*
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 9: lnvestments

8,255.93

8,255.93

Particularc

As at March 31,2022
Mutualfunds in lndia

TotalGross

Less : lmpairment loss allowance

Total- Net

As at March 31,2021- Restated
Mutualfunds in lndia

TotalGross

8,255.93

Less : lmpairment loss allowance

Total - Net

All the Mutual Fund units have been redeemed at the end of the reporting period, March 31 2022

More information regarding the valuation methodologies can be found in Note 43 - Fair value
measurement.

At Fair value through profit and
loss account



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Leasehold:
property,

improvement
work

4."
I

t.

I

:
I

j

I

I

l

.

Office
equipment

80.49
13.97

(37.36)

57.10

41.O9
21.87

(34.80)

28.16

17.26
(1.07)

44.35

28.94

18.61

Computer
Equipment

324.63
56.31

(214.78)i
I

'I

166.16
I

58.96
l

(12.87)i
1

;

212.251

l

212.47
80.06

(210.17)

82.36

64.78
(11.41)

135.73

83.80

76.52

..:

:

Furniture &,
Fixtures i

]

1

,

:

6133:

(11.57)'

27.15
8.74

(e.74)

26.15

8.37

34.52

24.48

507.39
'108.83

(263.71)

352.51

76.14
(1e.e3)

31 1.81
123.27 

'

(254.71)

180.37

261.48

172.13 ,

147.24 ,

otalT

Cost:

Additions
sposa

As

D

at 2020

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Additions
Disposals

As at March 31,2022

Depreciation and impairment:

As at April 1,2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31,2022

Net book value

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

As at March 31,2022

Apdl

ls

1 40.94
38.55

0.00
(4.ee)

49.7679.49

9.33
(0.08)

59.01

7

62.96

85
ee)

7

31.10
12.61

l
I

:

i

t.

i
I

:

l

:

:

43.71

8.16
(4.e7)

35.78

27.60

98.56
.45)7(1

Note : The company has not done any revaluation in respect of the above Property, plant and equipment during the year



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 11: Right-of-use assets

The company has elected not to apply the requirement of lnd AS 116 to short term leases of all assets that have a
lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expenses
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Particulars

1

. Cost:
l
l

' As at April1,2020
i Roditions
Adjustments
Disposals

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Additions
Adjustments
Disposals

As at March 31,2022

Depreciation and impairment

As at April 1,2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Depreciation charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

As at March 31,2022

Net book value:

As at March 31,2021- Restated

As at March 31,2022

Right-of-u
P

4,181.20
2,250.94
(290.67)

(2,895.60)

3,245.87

179.94
0.38

(141.54)

3,284.65

1,754.63
799.58

52.19
(1,ee6.e2)

2,636.39

2,080.21

4,1
2,2
(2e0.67)

(2,8e5.60)

3,245.g7

179.94
0.38

(141.54)

3,284.65

1,754.63
799.58

52.19
(1,996.e2)

(57.06)

1,204.44

2,636.39

2,080.21

609.48609.48

0265202652.

(57.06)

,204.44

I

1

i

1

i
1

I

I

I

i
:

:

l

i

:

i

lounbai
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 12: Other financial assets

Particulars

Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise
Security deposits
lnterest accrued on Loan Portfolio (Secured, considered good)
Cash Collateral Placed for hedge transaction
Others

Fixed deposits with bank with original maturity for more than 12
months
Other receivables
Less: lmpairment allowance

Total

1,400.24

193.45

As al
March 31,2022

267.03

As al
March 31,2021.

Restated

2,034.78

593.47
-3.63

2,891.65

Note: Out of the above, fixed deposit Rs. 1 ,443.03 lakhs (as at March 31, 2021 - Rs.1 ,249.01 lakhs) are marked
as lien against term loans.

244.94

115.50

1,954.{ 3



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
({ in Lakhs)

Note 13: Other intangible assets

a' "-
, Particulars
:

, Cost:

:

: As at April 1,202
: Additions

: As at March 31,

: Additions

i

I As at March 31,

0

2021 - Restated

2022

As at March 31,2022

Net book value:

As at March 31,2021 - Restated
L

Computer Software

182.24

182.24

44.99

227.23

90.37
45.62

135.99

166.83

46.25

60.40

As
March 31,2022

623.36

0.03
353.27
268.17
144.93

Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
As at April 1,2020
Amortisation charge for the year

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Amortisation charge for the year 30.84

As at March 31,2022

Note 14: Other non-financial assets

Particulars

Advance tax (net of Provisions for taxation and tax
deducted at source)
Goods & Service Tax cash ledger
Goods & Service Tax credit (input) receivable
Prepaid expenses
Advance to vendors

As at
March g1,2021 -!

Restated,

362.97

0,03
339.49
151.60
125.24

,389.1

o
o

edir

Murnbai

lL

rl

|.-

I

TOTAL 76 979.33



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 15: Trade Payable

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

2-3 More than 3

Ypgrs .". - _ ..y.,g?.rs - *__.- _-.-. y*gars*

1

. yeaF
ntha 1

Total

(i)MSM E As of March 31,2022 10.76

As of March 31,2021

(1i)others As of March 31,
i

2022 1,016.14 - 1,017
As of March 31,2021 'l ,161 .58

.24

1,161 EO

TOTAL 1,026.90 ,028.00
1 ,161.58

Notes:
The Following details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises shall be disclosed:
(a) The Principal amount and the Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

- Principalis 10.76lakh as on 31st March22 (Nilin 31st March 21)
- lnterest is Nil.

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year: Current year
Nil (Previous year Nil).

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act : Current year Nil (Previous year Nil).

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year : Current year Nil (Previous year Nil).

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 : Current
year Nil (Previous year Nil).

ltunbai

cr

s-
6)

t



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'1,2022
({ in Lakhs)

Note 16: Debt securities

Particulars

.Liability component of compound financial instruments
Senior secured notes
Non Convertible Debentures (Secured)
. Privately placed debentures
, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (U nsecured)

Privately placed debentures

'Total

Debt securities in lndia
Debt securities outside lndia

Redemption Date PuUGall option date
Repayment

details

As at

March r,,,ltoil March tl?:,;:
Restated,

Amortised cost

9.10

79,297.94

Face Value

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

Amortised cost

9.10

88,842.98

As at,
March 31,2022

As at.
March 31,2021 -,.

Restated

72

6

8,833.888935.,3

8,842.979,297

88,842.98

,972.91

.TOTAL 79,297.94

The Company has sought and obtained waiver / amendment etc in respect of any breach of loan covenants. No loans have
been recalled by lender as of March 31 ,2022

Particulars of Privately Placed Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (Secured):

September 29,2021

October 26,2021

August 07,2022

November 16,2022

February 07,2023
February 15,2023
April26,2023
May 13,2023

;August 28,2023
September 03,2025
February 26,2026
November 24,2023

December 9,2024

May 13,2024
February 13,2026

,March 18,2024
March 19,2024
June 13,2026
March 10,2027

Bullet

Two Equal
lnstalments

Bullet
Two Equal
lnstalments

Bullet
Bullet

Two lnstalments
Two lnstalments

Bullet
Bullet
Bullet
Bullet

Four Equal
lnstalments

Two lnstalments

6,000.00

3,500.00
10,500.00
3,250.00

0.51
6,500.00
6,200.00
3,500.00
3,200.00

5,550.00

2,000.00

71,331.91

984.02

September 03,2022
August 25,2022

March 18, 2023
March 19, 2023

March 10, 2025

March 30, 2024

000605,

4

6

5

,000.00

,500.00

,060.00

Two lnstalments ,

Six lnstalments
Six lnstalments

Two lnstalments
Bullet

Six Equal
lnstalments

5,000
10,00,000

1,00,000
1,00,000
1,00,000

10,00,000

4,521.40
4,100.00
1,667.00
1,333.00
2,450.00
2,000.00

6,000.00

3,500.00
10,500.00
3,250.00
5,080.00
6,500.00
6,200.00
7,000.00
3,200.00

7,400.00

4,521.40
4,100.00
2,500.00
2,000.00

87 ,31',1.40

1,522.48

88,833.88

March 30, 2025

Total

Add: lnterest Component (including EIR)

Total

g

TJr\4

s
o
()
a

dir

ll

o)

72,315.93'



lnterest rates range from 11.65% p.a. lo 14% p.a. for the year ended March 31 , 2022 (for the year ended March 31 , 2021 -
lnterest rate range from 11.65% p.a. lo 14% p.a.)

Security details for Non Convertible Debentures ('NCDs')

The NCDs are fully secured by first pari passu charge over the loan to merchants of the Company or cash deposits / fixed
deposits of the company in cases where the funds are pending deployment towards loan to merchants. The total asset cover
has been maintained as per the terms and condition stated in the respective debenture trust deeds.

Particulars of Privately Placed Cumulative Convertible Debentures (Unsecured):

Redemption Date PuUCall option date

September 23,2040

Total

Add: lnterest Component (including EIR)

Total

Repayment
details

Bullet

Face Value
As at

March 31,2022

6,625.00

347.91

6,972.91 i

As atl
March 31,2021 -

Restated

,000 6,625.00 
j

I

lnterest rate is 13.5% p.a. for the year ended March 31,2022 (for the year ended March 31 , 2021 - Nil)

CCD is classified as Financial Liability for the first two years from the date of issuance since it does not meet the fixed for
fixed test criteria as per lnd AS 109
Each CCD shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 years from the date of its issuance , on the expiry of which it shall
compulsorily and automatically convert into Series D CCPS at Floor Price (lNR 75) ie fan value of the equity shares of the
Company in the valuation report obtained by the Company prior to issuance of CCD in accordance with the requirements of
the Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999.

The CCD shall convert into CCPS in the following manner:
- Conversion within 12 months - at a discounl of 2O% of the Next Qualified Round Price
- Conversion within 24 months - at a discount of 30% of the Next Qualified Round Price
- Conversion after 24 months - Floor Price

ed it
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'1,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 17: Borrowings other than debt securities

Particulars

Term Loan

from bank in INR (secured)

from third party in INR (secured)

from third party in INR (Unsecured)

Cash credit / Overdraft facilities from banks (secured)

External Commercial Borrowings

Others: PTC

Total

Borrowings in lndia

Borrowings outside lndia

Amortised cost Amortised cost

As at
March 3'1,2022

5,225.83

'10,1 10.13

5,1 1 5.96

13,698.92

15,928.75

50,079.59

i

As at
March31,2021 -

Restated

4,085.80

12,670.42

2,004.11

2,455.72

16,648.32

3,421.36

41,285.73

079,5950,Total

36,380.67 24,637.41

16,648.3213,698.92

41,285.73

The Company has sought and obtained waiver / amendment etc in respect of any breach of loan covenants. No loans have been recalled by lender

as of March 31,2022

Term loan from bank:

These are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of specific identified book debts (loan assets). Of the total, loans of Rs. 1,927

lakhs (March 31 ,2021 Rs.2,569 lakhs) are secured by additional third party guarantee.

Coupon rate range from 6.85% to 11.50% for the year ended March 31,2022 (for the year ended March 31,202'l - lnterest rate range from 6.85%
p.a. to 11.50%).

Term loan from third party:

These are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of specific identified book debts. Of the total, loans of Rs. 500 lakhs (March

31,2O21iRs. 1,166.67 lakhs)aresecuredbyadditional fixeddeposit.Further,ofthetotal, loansof Rs. 1,357 lakhs (March31,2021: Rs.2,140.59)

are secured by additional third party guarantee.

Coupon rates range lrom 11.5o/o p.a. lo 14% p.a. for the year ended March 31, 2022 (for the year ended March 31 , 2021 inlerest rate range from

11.5% p.a. lo 14.45o/o P.a.).

Cash credit / Overdraft facilities from banks:

Thesearesecuredbyanexclusivefirstchargebywayof hypothecationofspecificidentifiedbookdebts. Ofthetotal,Rs5,115 lakhs(March31,
2021:2,455lakhs) are partially secured by lien marked Fixed Deposits.

Coupon rates range from 60lo to '1 1.05% p.a. for the year ended March 31, 2022 (tor lhe year ended March 31, 2021 - 9.75o/o to 11.05% p.a.).

External Commercial Borrowings:

These loans represent the External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) of the company. These are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of
hypothecation of specific identifled book debts.

Coupon rates range trom4.15o/o p.a. to6.15% p.a. fortheyearended March 31,2022(for theyearended March 31 ,2021 4.19o/op.a. to6.15% p.a.).

Others : Pass Through Certificate (PTC)

ThesearePassThroughCertificatesissuedbysecuritisationTrust whichmeetsthecriteriaof TrueSaleaspertheRBl guidelines.Fortheyear

ended 31st March2022, Rs 15,853 lakhs (March 31,2021: Rs 3,411 lakhs) are partially secured by lien marked Fixed Deposits
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 18: Other financial liabilities

Particulars

Merchant balances
Lease liabilities for premises on rent (refer Note 18A)
Other liabilities

As
March 31,2022

1,150.42
2,259.60

86.30

As at
March 31,2021 -

Restated

1,466.46
2,679.98

82.51

4,229.95

As at,
March 31,2021 -

Restated

As at:
March 31,2021 -,

Restatedi
'''i

800.65 l

2,586.751

122.99

3,510.39

Amount:
:

2,5g2.84',

320.04 l
J

I

731.74 i

(964.64)i

2,679.98 i

304.31 i

:

76.32 |

(801 01)i

2,259.60,

TOTAL 3,496.32

Note 18A: Lease liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31,2022

Lease liabilities for premises on rent 2,259.60

TOTAL

Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow

Padiculars

a

As at,
March 31,2022

Less than 1 year

1 - 5 years

6 - 10 years

More than 10 years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

1 ,909.16

The folfowing is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended March 31,2022:

Particulars

Balance as at April 1,2020

Add: Finance Cost accrued during the year

Add: Lease liability recognised during the year (Net of foreclosure)

Less: Payment of Lease Liabilities

Balance as at March 31,2021- Restated

Add: Finance Cost accrued during the year

Add: Lease liability recognised during the year (Net of foreclosure)

Less: Payment of Lease Liabilities

Balance as at March 31,2022
ttuioai

98

32828.

1

.582,825

88

I

t



Particulars

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 19: Provisions

Employee benefits

- Gratuity (refer Note 35)

- Provision for compensated absences (refer Note 35)

- Retention & performance bonus

Provision for non-tund based exposure

Provision for Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR)

Financial Guarantee

'Others

Loan commitment

Details of Company's Risk Management process and policies are set out in Note 44 - Risk Management.

Provision for non-fund based exposure:

a) Gredit Quality of Assets

Particulars

amount of non-fund based exposure (refer Note 38) 1,09S.31

b) An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans is, as follows:

Particulars

TOTAL

As at
March3'1,2O22

As at
March3'1,202'l -

Restated

84.1 I
41.87

336.14

'15.78

66.41

26',1.62

2.71

31.71

45.68

520.42

10.86

174.90

22.26

808.72 805.83

Mumbai

As at March 31,2022 As at March 3'1,2021 - Restated

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 3 Total

1.099.31

Stage 1 Stage 2

620.35 620,35

1,099.31 1,099.31 620.35 620.35Total

For lhe year ended March 31,2022 For the year ended March 31,2021 - Resiated

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount - opening balance

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)

620.35

1,099.31

(620.35)

620.35

1,099.31

(620.35)

1,082.26

620.35

(1,082.26)

20.90

(20.s0)

9.25 1,112.41

620.35

(1,112.41)(e.25) i

1,099.31 1,099.31 620.35 620.35Gross carrying amount - closing balance



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2O2Z
({ in Lakhs)

Note 19: Provisions

c) Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:

Particulars

: ECL allowance - opening balance

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)

' ECL allowance - closing balance

Stage 1

For the year ended March 3'1,2022

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage I

For the year ended March 31,2021 - Restated

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

7.22

(0.s3),

86

aa

0. 10.86

15.78

(10.86)

0.93 58.25

10.86

(58.2s),0.86)(1 .22)(7

15.78 15.78 10.86

Movement of provisions other than employee benefit during the year

The movement in provisions for the year ended March 31 , 2022 is, as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31,2021 - Restated

Additional provisions during the year

Utilised (lncurred or charged against that provision)

" 
t-iti9_9tio_1 Other' Total

22.26

0.44
i

(20.00)

zz-26

o.44

(20.00)

As at March 31,2022 2.70 2.70

Other Provisions:

Other provisions include allocated amounts related to Provision for regular expenses. lt is expected that the costs will be incurred over the next 12 months.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR PLAN 2015)

SAR grants was cancelled by the shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on Novembet 30,2017. The SAR's already granted to continuing
employees as on March 31,2018 is replaced by the Employee Stock Options under the ESOP 2017 scheme at the Special resolution passed by the members
on November 30,2017. The vesting schedule of each employee under ESOP scheme is aligned to the vesting schedule as perthe original SAR scheme except
the first vesting shall happen only after completion of 1 2 months from the date of the grant of option under ESOP scheme 201 7.



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year endedMarch31,2O22
(? in Lakhs)

Note 19: Provisions

under SARs is

Particulars

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

at the end of the year

' 
Particulars

Details of under Value n Scheme is summarized below:

:Particulars

of provision for VDS
Change in employee compensation cost pertaining to VDS

the
balance of for

Note 20: Other non-financial liabilities

: Particulars

Statutory dues payable

TOTAL

Nos

March 31,
As

March 31, 2021
As

Nos

1,69,400

't,69,400

1,69,400

1,69,400

Liability of SAR (Rs. ln lakhs) 66.41 174.90

As al
March31,2022

As al
March 31, 2021 .

Restated

174.90Opening balance of provision for SARs

Change In employee compensation cost pertaining to SARs
for the year (1 08.4e)

174.90

Closing balance of provision for SARs (Net off) 65.41 't74.90

As al
March31,2022

As at
March 31,2021 -

Restated
198-00

('t94.40) 198.00

3.60 '198,00

As al
March31,2O22

As al
March 3'1, 2021 -

Restated

262.21 230.09

262.21 230.09

Mumbai



Particulars

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 21: Share capital

r Authorised

2,1 0,00,000 (March 31 , 2021: 2,10,00,O00) equily shares of Rs. 1 0 each

4,60,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 4,60,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 1

each

Numbers

As at April 1, 2020

2,1 00.00

6,700 .00 6,700.00

Compulsory Cumulative
Convertible Preference Shares

(cccPS)

1,80,00,600

1,80,00,600

90,00,000
90,00,000

No of Shares

90,00,000
90,00,000

1,80,00,000

Amount

% of total shares

49.998%,
49.998%
100.00%

As
Match 3'1,202'l

Numbers

4,56,44,009

4,55,44,009

4,55,44,009

14.141o/oi

14.141%:

% change
during the year

0.00%
0.00%

Amount

90,00,000
90,00,000

% holding in:
the class.

l

49.998%
49.998%

% holding in all
classes

14.141%
14.141%

4
U

March 3'l
As at'
2022:

TOTAL

00.00

600.004,,600.00

Nos.Nos.

49.998%
8%49.99

lssued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Share Capital

1 ,80,00,600 (March 31 , 2021: 1 ,80,00,600) equity shares of Rs. 1 0 each

TOTAL 1,800.06:

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

.06

.06

,800

,800

.06,800

Particulars Equity

lssued during the year

i

As at March 31, 2021 - Restated

: lssued during the year

rAs at March 31,2022

:Promoter name

i) Dhruv Kumar Khaitan
ii) Piyush Kumar Khaitan

4,555.30

4,55;.30

06,80060000,,80

,800.06

,800.06 4,555.30

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.'10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. During the year ended March 31 , 2022, lhe amount of per share dividend recognized as dishibutions to equity shareholders was Nil (for the year ended
March 31 , 2021: Rs. Nil per share). ln the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution
of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as on reporting date

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021 - Restated
i

% holding in the: % holding in all
class classes

Dhruv Kumar Khaitan

Particulars

i)

ii) Piyush Kumar Khaitan

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, refer Note 34

Details of Promoters Shar,eholding
:

iShares held by promoters at the end of the year

Mumbai
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Particulars

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 21: Share capital
Note 22: Other Equity

Other equity movement during the year

4,56,44,009 (March 31, 2021i 4,56,44,009) 0.01% Compulsory
lCumulative Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of Rs. 10^ each
,fully paid up

'Balance as at the beginning of the year
Addition/Deletion
Balance at the end of the year

:Statutory Reserve (pursuantto section 45-lC(1) ofthe Reserve Bank of
lndia Act, 1934)

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year

:

:Securities Premium
Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year

Retained Earnings
: Balance as at the beginning ofthe year

Changes in accounting policy/prior period effo-rs
Resta.ted balance at the beginning of the curent reporting p-eriod

I Profit for the year
: Less: Dividend declared during the year on CCPS (a)
, Less: Transferred to statutory reserves during the

vear
Balance as at the end of the year

:

, Share options outstanding account
i Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Cost recognised during the year
r Balance as at the end of the year

!

i Other Comprehensive lncome
Balance as at the beginning of the year

r Add: Additions during theyear

: Bqlance as atthe end ofthe year

Total

Nature and purpose of Reserves:

Securities Premium Reserve:

As atr

March31,2022:

42,518

(14,514.84)
(1,178.04)

(15,692.88)
(3,945.41)

(0.46)i

..:
(19,638.75):

888.96
56.85

945.81

(258.03)
150.00

(1 0s.03)

As ati
MarchS1 ,2021 -.

Restated:

a

i

i

4,555.30

4rl-55.30

I

(1 1,505.34)l
-l

(1 1 ,505.34) l

14,187.08l.,
(0.46):

I

aao oa

150.04
888.96

(253.36)
(4.67)

(258.03).

32,214.04 t

202.45

4,555.30

4,555.30

202.45

8.2442,51

.88)5,692

28,47s.02

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share options outstanding account:

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value ofequity-settled share-based payments provided to employees as per IND AS 102'Share Based
Payments', including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 34 for further details of these plans.

Cash flow hedging reserve:

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk associated on borrowings as described within
note 6. For hedging foreign currency and interest rate risk, the Company uses foreign currency swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps. To the extent these
hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts recognised in the cash flow
hedging reserve is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'1,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 21: Share capital

Statutory reserve:
Statutory reserve is created as per the terms of section 45-lC(1) ofthe Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

ln compliance wlth the provisions, the Management has provided for dividend on Series A, B and C of Compulsory Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares at
the rate of 0.01% on a prorate basrs.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference Shares(cccPS):

Each holder of CCCPS is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affect the rights attached to CCCPS. Each
share of the series A, B & C CCCPS shall be converted into one equity share of face value of Rs. '10 each subject to any adjustments required for any possible
corporate action, e.g. share split, issue of bonus shares, etc. The Series A, B & C CCCPS shall be compulsorily convertible at the end of 20 (twenty) years from
the date of issuance of each Series CCCPS. The conversion can be done by investors on any date, provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the
Company by the respective investor. The Series A, B & C CCCPS shall carry a cumulative coupon rate of 0.01% per annum. The Company declares and pays
dividends in lndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares in the company as on reporting date

iParticulars

Aspada lnvestment Company
ON Mauritius
Khosla lmpact I Mauritius

rAccion Frontier lnclusion Mauritius
llFL Seed Ventures Fund I

West Bridge Crossover Fund LLC
Trinity lnclusion Ltd

53,80,758
69,65,'181
32,51 ,470
62,80,638
48,59,845
26,89,900

1,62,16,217

53,80,758
69,65,181
32,51 ,470
62,80,638
48,59,845
26,89,900

1,62,16,217

As at March 3'1,2022
-. % holdino in the
NOS.

ctass

:
t

% holding in all;
classes

8.45%
10.940
5.110
9.87o/o

7.64%
4.23%

25.48%

As at March 31, 2021 -

-. % holdNos' 
the

rng rn

c

11.79%
15.26%

7 .12o/o

13.76%
10.6s%
5.89%

35.53%

classes

8.45%
10.940
5.11%
9.87%
7.64%
4.23%,

25.48%

11.79%
15.26%
7.12%

13.76%
10.65%

5.89o/o'

35.53%,

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,
the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has not issued any shares for a consideration other than cash during the year and immediately preceding five years from the reporting date.

Terms of any securities convertible into equity / preference shares issued along with the earliest date of conversion in descending order starting from
the fadhest such date:

7,462,587 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of '1 equity
share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (May 22,201 3) or earlier at the option of the preference shareholder.
The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor, ten days prior
to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of Qualified lnstitutional Placement Offer (OIPO).

1,697,479 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity
share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (March 25, 2014) ot earlier at the option of the preference
shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor,
ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

1,131,720 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 101 each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity
share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of tvventy years from the date of allotment (June 19, 2014) ot earlier at the option of the preference
shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor,
ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

4,680,752 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity
share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (March 31, 2015) or earlier at the option of the preference
shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor,
ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

13,232 shares - 0,01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10L each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity share
for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (April 6, 201 5) or earlier at the option of the preference shareholder. The
conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor, ten days prior to
the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'1,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 2{: Share capital

2,357,650 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity

share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (July 29, 201 5) or earlier at the option of the prefetence shareholder.

The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor, ten days prior

to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

94,e8,272 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10i- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity

share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (June 21, 2016) or earlier at the option of the preference

shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor,

ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

10,660,312 shares - 0.01% fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of 1 equity

share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (January 23,2018) or earlier at the option of the preference

shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date , provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective investor,

ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO.

0,1 52,005 shares - 0.01 % fully Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 1Ol each issued by way of right issue are convertible into equity share

in the ratio of 1 equity share for every 1 preference shares held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (March 21 , 201 8) or earlier at the option of the

preference shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date, provided 30 days advance written notice is given to the Company by the respective

investor, ten days prior to the proposed filing of draft red herring prospectus by the Company in pursuance of QIPO. Right issue of share to existing shareholders.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 23: lnterest income

Forthe year ended March 31,

Particulars
On FinancialAssets

measured at Amortised cost

For the year ended March 31,
2021 - Restated

On FinancialAssets
measured at Amortised cost

:
I

'

I

:

h 31,.
2022,

286.89

:Particulars

.: Other financial services- Commission
Merchant Service Fees

: Service Fees on Syndication
:

:Total

,lnterest on Loans
: Business loans

jlnterest on deposits with Banks

Other interest income
Unwinding of security deposit

Total

Note 24: Fees and commission income

34,962.35

814.62

35.90

35,812.87

For the year ended Marc

29,594.81

963.80

131.33

30,689.94

Forthe year ended March 31,
2021 - Restated

56.90
281.15

3.17

341.22

For the year ended March 31,
2021 - Restatedl

:

341.22 ,

i

341.22:
:

341.22

123.79
91.66
71.44

Revenue from contracts with customers

Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to profit and loss
account

Particulars
I

L

1

I
:

Type of Services or Service
Fee and commission income

Total revenue from contract with
customers
Geographical markets
lndia

Outside lndia

Total revenue from contract with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Forthe year ended March 31,
2022

286.89

286.89

286.89

89286.

.22

.22

341

341

.89286

1286.89 34 22



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
({ in Lakhs)

Contract Balances

41.05

lmpairment allowance recognised on contract balances is Rs. Nil (March 2021 Rs.Nil)

Note 25: Net gain on fair value changes

Pafticulars For the year ended March 31,
2022

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instru
at fair value through profit or loss

Particulars

Trade receivables

Fees and other receivables

On trading portfolio
Realised
Unrealised

Embedded Derivative in respect of CCD

Total

Note 26: Other lncome

Particulars

lncome from other Services

lnterest on lncome Tax Refund

Cheque bounce charges

Miscellaneous lncome

For the year ended March 31,
2022

8.28

108.05

0.26

{ 16.59

97.56
6.34

103.90

Forthe year ended March 31,
2021 - Restated

11.27

88.31

95.56

0.25

195.39

As ati
March 31,2022i

304.60 I

As at
March 31,2021 - Restated

49.23

Forthe year ended March 31,
2021 - Restated

i

1

l
:

l

I
.i

l

65.65

:

:

(6.26) j

.:
59.39 :

l

' I otal

o

drt

Murnbaj

*



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to linancial sbtements for lhe year ended March 31, 2022
(f in Lakhs)

iParticulars

expense on:-
Debt secudties
Borowings (other than d€bt securitios)

lnterest expense on l€ase liability

Bad dobls witten off

ended
31

On Finahcial
instruments
measured at

On Financial
instJumenls
heasurcd at

Fo.lhe
ended

Amorlised

Forlhe yea.i
ehded Marchi

31,2021 -
Restatedl

:

Financlal:
liabilities:

On

Forthe yeari
ended Marchl

31,2021 -:

Restated:

10,309.53
3,264.97

measured at
Amorlised cost

1,497.24 i

13,571.68

9,346.60
2,55'1.56

176.24

Olher borrowing costs
othea borowing cost

,Tolal

Note 28: lmpaiment on financial ihstrumehts

15,341.70

The belowtable show impairment loss on linancial instrumenls chargo to statement of protit and loss based on category of financial inslrumenl.

293.24

1,473.96

Forthe

Padiculars

, Loans
Noh Fund Based Exposure
secudty Deposits

14,725.46
4.92

'Total 14,730.38

March 3,l, 202 1 - Rs. 1,629.95 lakhs) against curent year and previous yeaF'witten off amounls.

The table below shows the ECL charges oh finahcial inst.uments foathe year recorded in tho profit ahd loss based on evaluation slage:

Stage Simplified: Sbge

2,238.82 5,189.80
:

(4,694.99):

Padiculars

..apPloach:

0,54s.67):

i

(1,s45.67)l

-l
-i

5,882.95
4,385.91
4,456.62:Pdncipal loss on setllement

r Sub " Total

iNon Fund Based Exposure
iSecu.ity d€posits

5,'189.80

5,189.80

'14,725.4A

4.92

sub - Tohl

Total impaiment loss 14,730.40 14,734.221

editc(

o Mumbai

*





NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(l ln Lakhs)

Note 32: lncome Tax

The components of income tax expense for the year ended Marcn31,2022 and March3'1,2O2'l arc:

; Particulars

: Current tax
I Defened tax charge / (credit) relating to origination and reversal of temporary ditferences

:Total tax charge | 11,232.05l,

:

For the year,
ended March

31,2022

223.15
('t,455.20)

Forthe yeari
ended Marchi

31,2022

For the
ended March

31,2021
Restated

(5,177.46)

(1,303.06)

7't.o1 (2.84)

(1,232051: (1,412.021

75.42 :

4,521.55 :

47.68:
21.19 |

238.04 i

i

473.4A I

5,928.81

893.48
62.88
51.11

3,097.53
100.29

7.98
223.73

87.06

4,524.06

4,524.06

oct

For lhe Forlhe
ended ended

31, 31,

(405.83)
0,92

24.31

1,424.O2

'11.05

't4.31

3A6.42

't,455.20

For the year:
ended March:

31,202',t .:

Restated:

-:
(1 ,412.O2',) |

qat2.oz:l:

(5,599.10)

(1,409.18)

Reconclliation ofthe total tax charge:

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at lndia
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the a@unting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for the years

ended March 31, 2022 andMarc;/':'3'1,2021 is, as follows:

Particulars

,Accounting profit before tax

At lndia's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (for the year ended March 31 , 2021: 25.168%)

Effects of:
Creation of Defered Tax on account of Other lnd AS adjustments of the previous period

,Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

: Defered tax charge / (credit) relating to change in tax rates

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit & Loss

Deferred Tax
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balan@ sheet and changes re@rded in the lncome tax expense:

lncome
Statement

lncome
Statement

:

: Particulare

Brought FoMard Loss
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Lease Adjustments
lmpairment allowane for linancial assets
Derivative instruments in Cash flow hedge relationship
Gratuity
ESOP Expenses

,Other temporary differences includes defered ta on unamortised costs on Bonowings and
net income on Loan, defered tax on Allowable / disallowable expenses under lncome

Brought FoMard Loss
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Lease Adjustments
lmpairment allowan€ for tinancial assets
Derivative instruments in Cash flow hedge relationship
Gratuity

!ESOP Expenses

:Other temporary differences includes deferred ta on unamortised @sts on Bonowings and
unamortised net income on Loan, deferred til on Allowable / disallowable expenses under lncome
Td etc.

:

'Total

Net Amount

(52.61)l
2.16

(50.45)i

:Particulars Forthe
ended

ocr

Forthe year
ended March

31,2021 -
Restated

31,2021

4.92
(30.01)
982.23

6.54
124.59

0.13
1.44

1,412.02

D
(D

*

Mumbai

cre
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 33: Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company (after adjusting for dividend on the convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars
For the year For the year,

ended March 31.1ended March 31,
2022' 2021 - Restated

(3,945.41), (4,187.08)
(0146) (0 46)

(3,e45.87) (4,187.54)

Net profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
Less: Dividend to Preference Shareholders
Profit / (loss) available for equity shareholders (A)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share (B)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for dilutive earnings per share (C )

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of Compulsory Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Weighted average number of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD)
Dilutive impact of weighted average number of ESOP

Face value of per share

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) [A / B]
Diluted earnings per share (Rs,) [A / C] (Refer Note 1)

7,24,77,942
7,46,8',1,492

1,80,00,600
4,56,44,009

88,33,333
22,03,550

6,36,44,609
6,56,68,292

j

1,80,00,600 ,

4,56,44,009

20,23,683

000.0.00

(5.44\ (6.58)
(5.44)' (6.58)

Notes:
1. Since diluted EPS are anti-dilutive hence, the disclosure is restricted to basic EPS.
2. Weighted average shares mentioned above are numbers.
3. As per lnd AS 33, Para 23 " Ordinary shares that wlll be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in
the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into". Consequently CCPS and CCD have been included in the
computation of Basic EPS.

Itunbai

ctit

*

o
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NEOGROWTH CREOIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ende d March 3'l, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 34: Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

ESOP Scheme 2018

The Employee Stock Options Scheme (ESOP Scheme) 2018 was approved by the shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 21, 2018. The
Scheme has been formulated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended read with applicable provisions ofthe Companies Rules, 2014. The
Company has granted stock options to the eligible employees as per ESOP scheme 2018. All the options are exercisable on liquidity event or lnitial Public Offer (lPO),
whichever is earlier. The Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 is being administered and monitored by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company set
up by the Board. The Company is authorised to issue 27,99,589 (Twenty Seven Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Five Hundred and Eighty Nine) number of equity shares of the
Company having face value of Rs. 10 per share, under the ESOP Scheme 2018 to the eligible employees upon meeting of such vesting criteria as may be fixed or
determined by the Board.

ESOP Scheme 2017

No further options were granled during the year under this scheme. All the options are exercisable on liquidity event or lnitial Public Offer (lPO), whichever is earlier. The
Board at its meeting held on March 21 , 201 I approved for short closing the ESOP 201 7 and approved revised ESOP 20 1 8 scheme.

Forthe year ended March 31, 2022following Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPS) were in existence. The relevant details ofthe schemes and the grants are as below

,oetiiri or emptoyee Stock Option Schemes
Date of Shareholdefs approval of plan
Date of grant
Number of options granted

Method of settlement
Vesting Period
Details of vesting condition
Exercise Price

Details of Vesting

Vesting period from the grant date *

Completion of 1 year
Completion of 2 year
Completion of 3 year
Completion of 4 year
Completion of 5 year

Details of activity under each plan
Pa rticu la rs

Outstanding as at April 1, 2020
Granted during the year

Outstanding as at March 31, 2021

Outstanding as at April 1, 202 1

Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year

OuBtanding as at March 3'1, 2022
Vested and exercisable as at March 31, 2022
Weighted average remaining @ntractual life (in years)

:
rParticulars

:

: Risk-free interest rate
tExpected life of options (years)
Expected volatility (%)
Dividend vield

i Exercise price

ESOP 2018

March 21,2oi8
Various dates

2 t,63,884
Equity

5 years
Continued service

Rs.

ESOP 2017

November 30, 2017
Various dates

4,21,OOO

Equity
5 years

Continued service
159.47 .... :. Rs, 10 to Rs. 113.17

ESOP 2018

20.oovo
20.00o/o

20.OlYo:
20.oo%
ZQ.O1Yo,

ESOP 20t7
20.000k.
20.ooo/..

20.oovo:

There were no cancellations or modifications to the schemes in March 3l , 2022, March 31 , 2O2'l

* The SAR'S already granted to continuing employees as on March 31, 2018 is replaced by the Employee Stock Options under the ESOP 2017 scheme at the Special
resolution passed by lhe members on November 30, 2U7 .fhe vesting schedule of each employee under ESOP scheme is aligned to the vesting schedule as per the original
SAR scheme except the first vesting shall happen only after completion of 1 2 months from the date of the grant of option under ESOP scheme 201 7.

ESOF 20lS

20.ooo/o

20.ooo/.

:

60.81 '

00/o

159.47
159.47

2017 
:

Weighted Avg. ,

Exercise Price ,

60.81

No. of Options

'16,53,384

30,000
1 6,83,384

16,83,384
2,50,000

(1,1 9,500)
1 8,1 3,884

9,43,130
2

Weighted Avg.
Exercise Price

't59.47
't59.47

159.47
159.47
159.47
159.47

3,97,200

3,97,200

3.82o/o lo 5.35'lo
5 years
38.'t3%

Qo/o

159.47
159.47

For the year
ended March 31,

2022

2021 - Restated

+.qqY" to s.ilw)
5 years:
24.O8%:

3,91,200
3,97

The value of the underlying shares has been delermined by an independent valuer. The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants in accordance
with Black Scholes model, for options granted during the financial year:

,200 60.81

For the year: For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,

2022:

tWeighted average share price (Rs.)

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the Government bond yields with maturity equal to the expected term of the option. Volatility calculation is based on

historical stock prices of comparable companies using standard deviation of change in stock price. The historical period is taken into account to match the expected life of
the option.

The expense recognised for emplo--yee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

, Particulars
For the year

ended March 31,
2021 - Restated

159.04Expense arising from equity-settled share based payment transactions
Expense arising from cash-settled share based payment transactions
Total expense arising from share based payment transactions

,o
L
ti)

o

\o

+

56.85

56.85 1 59.04



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 35: Retirement benefit plan

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under
the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specifled percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs. 154.68 lakhs
(for the year ended March 31 , 2021: Rs. 150.34 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions (including ad min charges) and Rs. 0.1 0 lakhs (for the year ended March
31,2021: Rs. 0.22 lakhs) for Employee State lnsurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the
Company are at rates specified in the rules ofthe Schemes.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan and is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has completed
flve years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service, managerial grade and salary at
retirement age. Gratuity expense has been disclosed separately in Note 29. .

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts
recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

Statement of Profit and Loss

(1) Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

rParticulars

Current service cost
lnterest expense

:lnterest income

lTotal Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss

iRemeasurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
i-change in demographic assumptions
,-change in frnancial assumptions
-experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)
-others
Return on plan assets excluding interest income

iTotal Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

Balance Sheet

(2) Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

: Defined benefit obligation
, Fair value of plan assets
Assev(liability) recognized in the balance sheet

(3) Changes in the present value ofthe defined benefit obilgation are as follows

Particulars

:

, Opening deiined benefit obligation
Transfer in/Out
lnterest cost
Current service cost
Benefits paid

: Past Service Cost
Remeasurement (or Actuarial) (gain) i loss arising from:

-change in demographic assumptions
-change in financial assumptions

-experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Closing defined benefit obligation

Less: Amount paid by Fund but yet to be paid to employee

Net Closing defined benefit obligation

., Fortheyearended"'ffiI;i:;;;: r".;.*iTl;
:

47.45
8.1 1

(6.72)

48.55
7.06

(5.34)

:

:

:

:

I
I

I

!

48.84

As at;
March 31,2022-:

221.05
136.92
(84.1 8)

50.27

(7.87)
9.50

5.71

As at
March3l,2021 -

Restated

084.

(7.24)
(2.33)
16.03

2.12

8s8

Particulars

184.45
152.74
(31.71

:

).

As atj
As at,

March 3'l',2022:

:

184.45 ,

March 31,2021 -,

Restated

.22

.068.1 1

47.45
(25.37)

(7.24)
(2.33)

16.03

221.09

(7.87)
9.50

184.45

7

4.01
48.55

(1

184.45221 .09



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 35: Retirement benefit plan

Note:
Amount of Rs. Nil (as of March 31, 2021: Nil) has been released by LIC to the company w,r.t, gratuity payment to a left employee, lvhile the same has not yet been
received by the employee.

(4) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

As
Asa

Particulars March 31,
March31,2021

Restater

(5) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations forthe Company's plans are shown below:

:Opening fair value of plan assets
.Transfer iniout
,lnterest income

iParticulars

Discount rate
rSalary growth rate
tAttrition rate

Customer Acquisition Manager ('CAMS)

Other than CAMS

Mortality rate

(6) lnvestments quoted in active markets:

Particulars

Funds managed by the issuer

Total

(7) Expected payment for future years

r Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
, Between 2 and 5 years

: Between 6 and 10 years
, Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

lOoo/o of IALM 2012.: 100% of IALM 201

14 14

152.74

6.72
4.95

(2s.37)

136.92

As at
March 31,2022

4.7 5o/o

6.00%

58o/o

41%

5.34
58.64

(14.01)
(4.08)

152.74

106.85

March 31, 2021
Restat€

4.40%
6.00%

7Oo/o

35%

I

March 31

As al
Match 31,2022

As atl
,2022i

I
I

1000/.1
j

r0o%l

As at
March 31, 2021 -

Restated

100%

iooxl
i

March
As atl

31,202'l -1

Restatedi

l
55.60 l

116.48 l

35.09 :

5.94
L

81.03
142.30
24.77

2.30

250.40 213.11 L

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 120.72lakhs to the fund in the next financial year

The weighted average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation as at March 31,2022 is 2 years (as at March 31,2021 : 3 years).

The fund is administered by Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia ("LlC"). The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date, applicable to the period overwhich the obligation is to be settled.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined considering the
general trend in inflation, seniority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in employment market, etc.



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'|,,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 35: Retirement benefit plan
The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment obligations for the Company's plans are showr below:

As at
As at

rticulars March 31,2022
March3'!,2021 -

Restated

i

iPa

Discount rate

Salary grovvth rate

Normal retirement age

Mortality Rate

Attrition rate

Customer Acquisition Manager (CAMS)

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

DiscountRateC/+1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivily)

Salary Growth Rate C / + 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Attrition Rate (- I + 50% of attrition rates)
, (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

4.75%

6.00%

58 years

100o/o of IALM 2012
14

4.40%

6.00%

58 years

1OO%of IALM2012.
14

Other than CAMS

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. lt is based on the yields / rates available on applicable bonds as
on the current valuation date.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined considering the
general trend in inflation, seniority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in employment market, etc.

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and
is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year
(subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is
shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, lvhich
should result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligalion are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

As
As at

Particulars
March 31,

March 31, 2021 -

221.09

Restated

184.45

58%

41%

As at
March 31,2022

Decrease I

226.80
2.6o0/o

215.97
-2.300k

265.48
20.10%

221.07
0.00%

70%

350k

lncrease

215.65
-2.50%

226.36
2.40o/o

191.45
-13.40%

221.11
O.OOo/o,

Particulars
As at

March 31,2021 - Restated
Decrease I lncrease

i

190.46 l

3.30%,

;

17s.eo i

-3.00o/o

237.58
28.800/.

184.42
0.00o/o

178.77
-3.10%

190.17
3.1OVo

150.93
-18.20%

84.47
0.00%



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 36: Maturity analysis of asseG and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With regard to loans and
advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the ElR. lssued debt reflect the contractual
coupon amortisations.

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021 - Restated
lParticulars

Within 12

months
Within 12 months After 12 months After 12 months Tota

Assets

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than above
Derivative fi nancial instruments
Trade receivables
Loans
lnvestments

'Other financial assets

Non-financial Assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

i Other intangible assets
Other non financial assets

,Total assets

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises

total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Derivative fi nancial liabilities
Debt Securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Other Financial liabilities

, Non-financial Liabilities
:Provisions
:Other non-fi nancial liabilities

Total Liabilities

9,042.37
4,842.05

227.72
90,282.71

o.zo
45,798.49
41,237.15

1,812.66

523.47
262.21

90,668 24 

:

15,186.74 :

595.26
76.88

47,689.06

2,187.29

5,928.81

33,499.45
8,842.44
1,683.66

285.25

5,453.22
25,807.81

0.01
79,726.24
8,255.93

Jtt.oz

41,040.41

1,636.51

4.524.06
172.13

2,636.40
46.25

Jb3. J /

61 ,1 39.1 4
20,068.73

3.027.87

84,490.44

5,453.22
25.807.81

0.01 i

1,20,766.65
8,255.93
1 .954.1 3

805.83
230.09

1,36,581.81

704.35

0.00 4,524.06
0.01 147.23 172.13

2,080.21 2,636.39
60.40 46.25

613.96

1,05,854.98 59,399.13 1,65,254.12 1,20,174.78 50,421.13 1,70,595.91

10.76 10.76

1,017 .24 1,017 .24 1,161.58

979.33oo633.77755.

5,928.81
147.24

2,080.21
60.40

1,389.76

6.26
79,297.94
50,079.59

3,496.32

80a.72
262.21

0.00
0.00

-0.01

6

26.

58

65
98
rc
95

26.65
27,703.84
21,217.00

1,201.08

551 .1 3

230.09

88,842.

4,228.
,28541

70254.

44,310.80 1,34,979.04 52,091.37
-j

15,088.33 i 30,275.O7 68,083.41 (34,069.31) 34,0',t4.1

Note:
1. The Company considers PuUCall option dates for the purpose of reporting maturity pattern of Bonowings including debt securities.

2. ln the preparation of the above disclosure, certain assumption have been considered by the management which have been relied upon by the auditors.

3, The Maturity Profile in respect of loans given has been prepared based on the contractual cash inflows from the loans disbursed agreed with customers as the
company expects the behaviour to be similar.

[,ltlrnbaj
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 21,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 37: Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

Debt Securities
Borrowings other than debt securities

Particulars

Debt Securities
Borrowings other than debt securities

i" "'*- -'"* -
Total

*Others lncludes amortised cost impact and incremental interest liability at the year end

(1e0.55)
121.46

*Others

419.36
10.26

79,297.94
50,079.59

As
March 31,2021 -',

Restatedl

88,842.98
41,285.74

As at
March 31,2021 -

Restated
Cash Flows (net) Exchange

difference
*Others As at 31 March

88,842.98
41,285.74

(e,354.4e)
8,259.51 412.88

Total 1,30,129.72 (1,094.98) 412.88 (6s.09) 1,29,377.53

As at
April 1,2020

Cash Flows (net) Exchange
difference

73,302.22
34,317.77 (576.e6)

15,121.41
7,534.66

1,07,619.99 22,656.07 (576.e6) 429.62 1,30,129.72



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMTTED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March g1,2OZz
(t in Lakhs)

Note 38: Contingent liabilities, commitments

(A) Contingent Liability

Contingent Liability

(B) Commitments

Gommitments related to loans sanctioned but undrawn
Paylater Open Limits (refer Note 19)

Other Gommitments
Capital commitments

Particulars As at 31 March
2022

As at
March 31,2021-

Restated

Total

Particulars As at 3{ March
2022

As at
March 31,2021-

Restated

1,465.74

0.35

827.14

7.48

Total 1,466.09 834.62

Mumbai



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(< in takhs)

Note 39: Details of transactions with struck off company / under process of strike off

Name of struck off Company/under process of strike of transactions with

Concrete

Mentor

Company/under
off

Lrd 69,47,1 56
istics Solution Pvt. Ltd

Kaffee

45,42,197 Un related party, Customers

Boudoir Lounge Private Limited

23,97,082

Sanka lndia Pvt Ltd

Un related party, Customers
Bakery And Restaurant Pvt Ltd Loans and Advances

Research Labs Private Limited

22.43.794 Un related Dartv. Customers

Private Limited

White Feathers Hospitality Pvt. Ltd.

Day Restaurant lndia Private Limited

Fashions Pvt. Lld.

Un related party, Customers
nts Pvt Ltd

Tamarai Hotels Private Limited

19,78,25'l

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

Benze Vacations Club - Hyderabad

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

23 Chefs Private Limited

Loans and Advances

City Fresh Relail Pvt Ltd

Grandway lnnovations lndia Pvt Lld

17,43,825

Loans and Advances

Brg Sales Pvt Ltd

16,O2,O75 Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

As at 31 March
2022

15.01,666

Loans and Advances

13,74,823

Sukhsagar Textiles Pvt Ltd

't3,47.332

lvleenu Gems Private Limited

Sinhas Home Pvt Ltd

12,79,216

Loans and Advances

Dalchini (Opc) Private Limited

't 1,64,176

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

1'1,45,6'10

1 1,15,829

The Elbo Room

Loans and Advances

Relationship with the struck off
Company, if any, to be disclosed

Loans and Advances

8.74.575

Loans and Advances

Solutions Pvt

The Elbo Room - Chq

Loans and Advances Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

8.04.992

lWe Hotels Private Limited

Loans and Advances

21,76,768

Un related Darty. Customers

Un related partv. Customers

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

Prateek lntimate Products Pvt Ltd- Parallel

7,29360

20.54.'t66

6,99,1 88

Loans and Advances

Brydan Foods Pvt Ltd Loans and Advances

Services Private

un related oartv. Customers

6,61 ,570

Loans and Advances

Rage Fitness & Adventure Private Limited

Un related Dartv. Customers
Air Travels Private

19,12,830

Loans and Advances 6,15, 161

Loans and Advances

Jarota Enterprises Private Limited

Enchanting Destination Tours Pvt Ltd

18,68,930

Loans and Advances 5,91,597

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Niche Events And Promotions Pvt Lld

5,64,838

18,34,719

5.00.261

Loans and Advances

Un related oartv. Customers

Loans and Advances 4,90,000

I 8,25,383

Limited 4.65,372

Un related party, Customers

Un related Dartv. Customers

Loans and AdvancesN4/S Aditya lnkiet Technolosies Pvt Ltd 4,39,582

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

4,12,O55

Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

Avisons Works Private Limited

3.87.388 Un related Dartv. Customers
Loans and Advances

Un related Dartv. Customers

2,75,70'l

Maa Bhook Lagi Food Seruires Private Limited

2,50,542

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

2,04,749
Pan Club Hotel Pvt Ltd

Un related Dartv, Customers

1,93,231

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Sagayam Hospitalities Pvt Ltd

Loans and Advances 1,68,518

't3,43,462

Loans and Advances

Un related parlv. Customers

Pawanputra Oil Technologies Private Limited

Loans and Advances 1 ,40,633

Un related parlv. Customers

)avruksh Hotels Pvt Ltd 1,29,436

Srl Fitness Private Limited

Un related partv, Customers

1.21.847

Loans and Advances

Bq Automobiles Private Limited 1,07,056

Un related party, Customers

Cellcom Computers Solutions Private Limited

Private Limited

38.850

5,Lr,87,927

Un related Dartv. Customers

Golden Gate Residency Hotels Opc Pvt Ltd

Loans and Advances

Un related parly, Customers

10,73,892

Loans and Advances

Un related partv, Customers

Sevenoaks Engineering Private Limited

9,52,37'l

Un related Dartv. Customers

Pure Proteen Pvt. Ltd.

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

8,19,278

Un related Dartv. Customers

Sarika Craft Bazaar Private Limited

Loans and Advances

P!/t Ltd-

Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

7.84.300

Un related party, Customers

Un related oartv. Customers

7,68,143

Total

Loans and Advances

7.41.344

Un related oartv, Customers

*!q!e!! Out of outstandinB principal balance of Rs 6,17,87,927/-, 50 loans amounting to Rs.5,53,77,250/- has been write off loan and advances

Un related Dartv. Customers

as at 31st March 2022.

6.76.597

Un related Darlv. Customers

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

6.31,050

Loans and Advances

Un related Dartv. Customers

6,03,026

Loans and Advances

Un related partv, Customers

Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Un related partv. Customers

Loans and Advances

Un related partv. Customers

Loans and Advances

Un related oartv. Customers

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Loans and Advances

3,06,464

Loans and Advances

Un related party, Customers

Un related parlv. Customers

2,40,853

Un related party, Customers

Un related Dartv. Customers

1.76.011

Un related party, Customers

Un related Dartv. Customers

1,48,800

Un related party, Customers

Un related party, Customers

Un related Darlv. Customers

Un related party, Customers

Un related party, Customers

Un related Dartv. Customers

ted;lo

Murnbai
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE UMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March31,2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 40: Related party disclosures

(A) List of Related Parties with whom Company had transaction

Enterprise where Key Managerial Personnel has significant influence or control
Dilta Seruices LLP
KFO Enterprises LLP

Key Managerial PeFonnel
lvlr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan
lvlr. Arun Nayyar
lvlr. B Ravi Kumar

' Mr. Deepak Goswami
[/r. lvluthiah Ganapatty
Ms. Tanushri YeMle

Directors
l\rr. Dhruv Kumar Khaitan
Ms. Bindu Ananth
Mr. Mahesh Krishnamurthy
l\4r. Ganesh Rengaswmy
1,4r. Prashasta Seth (upto January 1,2021)
lvlr. iilicheal Femandes
Mr. Pranav Kumar
i.4r Amit Mehta (from Febtuary 12,2021)

lvlanaging Director
Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Offier (CEO)
Chief Financial Ofiicer (CFO) & Company Secretary (CS) (till June 10, 2021)
Chief Financial Ofticet (CFO) (from June 11, 2021)
Company Secretary (CS) (from Od.ober 01, 2021 to February 18,, 2022)
Company Secretary (CS) (trcm February 19, 2022)

Chairman
lndependent Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Additional Director

(B) Related Party transactiore during the year:

Enterprise where Key Managerial
PeFonnel has signifimnt influence

or control

For the
For the year

ended / as
ended / as at

March 31, 2021
Match31,2022.

11.27

Key Management Personnel / Managing
Director

Forthe year: Forthe year ended / as:
ended, as at at March 31, 2021 -

March31,2122 Restated

Directore
Relatires of Key Management

PeFonnel , Directore

Particulac

TransactioG

For infrastructure maintenance charges
recovered

Managerial Remuneration

lnterest Expense

Professional fees

Remuneration

Balances

Deposit for accommodation

Compulsorily Converted Debentures (CCD)

lnteresl accrued on CCD

Forthe
ended / as

March 31,

a.2a

47.06 47.30

347.57

23.O7

czv-Jd

330.00

16.83

23.O7

24.OO 24.0O

330.00

'16.83

Note:
a) Related parties have been identified on the basis of the declaration received by the management and other records available.

and hene are not included above.

apply to non-related parties.

For lhe yearl
ended ,/ as at

March31,2022
i

March 31, 2021

ended / as
For the

March 31, 2021
ended / as
For the

A/luntbai

*



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 41: Capital

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company
complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in

economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. ln order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the
Board.

,Regulatory capital

IER lcapital

irteR ttcapital

:Totalcapital

Risk weighted as--sets

Tier ICRAR
IICRAR
l+ IICRAR

I
I

1

:

l

I

:

l

As at 31 March 2022
As at:

March 31,2021
Restated

28,662.72

30,421.40

1,40,694.03

20.37%
1.25%

21.62%

:

T 23,389.24

7,554.06

30,943.30

1,33,243.32

17.55o/o
5.670/o

23.22o/o

58.681,7

Regulatory capital consists of TIER I capital, which comprises share capital, share premium,
retained earnings including current year loss less accrued dividends.

As per RBI guidelines, the Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company has to maintain 15o/o of
capital adequacy ratio for NBFC business.

Note 42: Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial
statements.

\lrrmUa



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITEO
Notes to tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 43: Fair value reasurement

,13.'l Valuation P.inciple

based on a hiemrchy of valuation techniques

inslrumenls valued using models v'/tlere all signifi€nt inpuls are obseryable.

,13.2 Fair Value HieErchy of assets and liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of financial jnslrumenls recorded at fair value by level of lhe fair value hierarchy:

Match 31, 2022

Assets measured atfair value on a rccuring basis

Derivative financial inslrumenls
Curency SMps
Cross Curency lnterest Rale Swaps

Total derivative financial insiruments

Level-1 i Level.2

't97.56

Tota I i

i

LevelJi

. ..... !:u"13,

*r.
6.26 

:

:
6.26 :

197.56

595.26

595.26

Financial assets held fortrading
l\4utual funds

Total Financial assets held for trading

Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis I?5ll6
595.26Total financial as*ts measured at fair value

Liabilities reasured al fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Embedded Derivatives

Total derivaiive financial instrurents

Total financial liabilities reasured al fairvalue on a recurring basis

Total financial liabilities reasured at fair value

March 31. 2021 - Restated

: Assets reasured atfair value on a recurring basis

Financial assets held fortrading
Mutual funds

Total Financial assets held for trading

Total assets measured al fairvalue on a recurring basis

Total financial assets measured at fair value

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurrinO basis

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Cunency Swaps
Cross Curency lnterest Rale Swaps

Total derivalive financial instruments

8159:sl 
l

9,2s9:el ,

Level-1:

6.26

6.26

6.26

8,255.93 :

8,255.93 :

Level-1 |

8,255.93

8,255.93

64.09 i

.... ...... 90.7-3 .:

26.65 :

zs.ss 
,

.26.65

90.73

Total
financial liabilities meisured alfair-Elue on a recurring basis

financial liabililies measured at falr value 26.65

There are no financial inslruments measured at fair value on non-recuring basis.

Investments in Mutual Fund are fair valued thrcugh Profit & Loss accounl. Derivative Financial lnstruments are fair valued thrcugh Other Comprehensive lncome.

Mumbai



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o financial stalements for ihe year ended l\4arch 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

No(e 43: Fair value measurement

43.3 Valuation techniques

Derivalive contracls

(implied yield curves).

whole).

Foreign exchange conlEcts

Mutual Funds

published by respective AMCS on a daily basis. The cost of ihe portfolio as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. Nil (As at Match 31,2021 - 8,249.59 lakhs)

i|3.4 Fair value of financial inslrumenls not measured at fair value

values of noh-financial assels

Fair Value
:March 31, 2022

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

r Bank balance other than above

Carrying Value

9,042.37
4,842.05

304.60
1 ,37 ,971 .77

2,891.65

1,55,052.44

At amodised cost
Al amorlised cost
At amoriised cost
At amorlised cost
At amorlised cost

Valuation
Level-1

11,274.46

Level-2

6,432.41
4,842.05

Level-2

2,200.00
25,807.81

LevelJ

304.60
1,37,971.77 :

289165:

1,41,168.02:

Tota I

1,55,052.44

I,O42.37
4,842.05

304.60
1 ,37 ,971 .77

2,891.65

TEde receivables
Loans
Olher Financial Assets

Off balance sheet ilems
Other @mmitments

,Total financial assets

I Financial liabilities:
Tmde payables

: Debl securities
Borowings (otherihan debl securities)
Olher Financial liabilities

Off balance sheet items
Other @mmilmenls

Other Financial Assets

financial assets

: Financial liabilities:
iTEde payables
: Debt securities
Borowings (other lhan debt securilies)

: Other Financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

At amorlised cost
At amortised cosl
Al amorlised cosl
Al amorlised cost

1,028.00
79,297.94
50,079.5S

3,496.32

Al amodised cosl
At amortised cosl
At amortised cost
At amortised cost

'1,028.00

79,297.94
50,079.59

3,496.32

0.01
1,20,766.65

't,954.13

5,453.22
25,4O7.81

0.0'l
1,20,766.65

1,954.'13

'1,161.58

88,842.98
41,285.73
4,224.95

88,842.98
41,285.73
4,228.95

'1,33,901.85

'1,028.00

79,297.94
50,079.59

3,496.32

'1,33,90'1.85

Al amodised cost 1,465.74 )

Total off+alance sheet items 1,465-74 |

There are no lransfer of assists / liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the cufient year as well as previous year. - to confim this statement

31, 2021 - Restated Valuation
Level-1

,465.

,465.

74

74

1,33,901.85

1,465.74

'l,465.74

Tola I

I

i

Carrying Value i

j

i

s,lss.zz:
25,807.81:

0.01 i

1,20,766.65 j

1,954.13:

1,53,981.82:

l

1,161.58 l

88,842.98,
41,2A5.73:
4,228.95 |

1,35,519.24

i

azt iq l

827.14.

Fair Value

LevelJ

Financial assels:
Cash and @sh equivalents
Bank balance olher lhan above
Trade receivables
Loans

Al amorlised cosl
At amortised cost
At amortised cost
At amortised cost
At amorlised cost

3,253.22

3,253.22 28,007.8'l 'l,22,720.79 1,53,981.82

1,161.58

'1,35,519.24 1,35,5.19.24

At amortised cost 827.14

iTotal off-balance sheet items 827.'t4

43.5 Valuation methodologies of financial instrumenls not measured at fair value

liabililies and off-balance sheet iiem are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence their carrying values are deemed lo be fair values.

827

427.14

Munbai
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements forlhe yearended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 44: Risk management

44.1 lntroduction and Risk Prcfile

44.'1.1 Risk management structure

wfiich is responsible for moniloring the overall risk pro@ss wilhin the Company.

managing porlfolio risk decisions and monitoring risk levels.

discuss lhe results of all assessments with the management and reports their findings and recommendations lo the Audit Commitlee of lhe Board.

44.1,2 Risk mitigation and risk culture

the Company uses derivatives to manage its inlerest rate and foreign exchange risk arising from the USD denominaled bofiowings

exchange movement) in line wilh the Board approved policies.

44,1.3 Risk measurement and reporting systems

risks e.9., natural disasters / events / pandemic situations etc., are eslimated by applying judgmental inferences to lead indicalors of portfolio behavior.

The Company's policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk, in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activilies.

designed to provide all lhe necessary information to interpret, assess and conclude on the risks of the Company.

Company continuously trains its employees to build awareness ofthe Company's risk appetite and support them in their roles and responsibilities to monilor risk.

44.2 cGdit Risk

amount of risk it is willing to accept on its Loan Porlfolio, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identill€tion of possible changes in the creditworlhiness of counterparties.

The credil quality review pro@ss aims lo allowthe Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take @rective aclions.

44.2.1 Derivative f inancial instruments
Credil risk a.ising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to lhose with positive fair values, as re@rded on lhe balance sheet.

high raled Banking Counterparty(ies) to ensure mitigation of counterparty qedit risk and settlement risk.

44.2.2 lmpaiment assessment

The Company's definition and assessment of defaull (Note 44.2.2.1).
-How the Company dellnes, @lculates, monitors and validates the Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) (Noles 44.2.2.2 lo 44.2.2.3)
-When the Company considers there has been a significanl increase in credit .isk (SICR) ofan exposure (Note 44.2.2.4)
-The details of the ECL calculations for Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and it's respective sub-stage assels

44.2.2.1 Definition of default

- All the facilities of a bonower from all the borrored a6ounts are lreated as Stage 3 wtten one of his facility becomes 90 days past due i.e. credit impaired.
- A covenant breach not Mived by the Company

44.2.2,2 PD estimation process

(Stage 3), a PD of 100% is applied.

loans, to eslimate lhe likely of Defaull

44.2.2.3 Loss Given Default (LGD) & Exposure at Default (EAD)

from the realization of any security This is @mpuled basis seasoned defaulted loans.

Exposure at Default (EAD) is considered as '100o/o of Oulstanding balance in respecl of loan receivables.



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for ihe year ended March 3 1, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 44: Risk management
44.2.2.4 significant incease in credit risk

to pay and accordingly applies a higher PD rate. An asset €n move in & oul of SICR calegory based upon whelher it has undergone SICR events lhat may include (and not be limited lo):

- When one of lhe facilities of a borrorer becomes 30 days past due
- Borrorers of a segment / induslry / geography under stress

44.3 Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity Risk is primarily monitored by a Board appointed Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) and is managed by the Company's treasury team under the guidance ofALCO.

2. Mapping of near to medium-term outflows on liabililies and expected inflows from assets, thereby performing a gap assessmenl for incremental fund raising
3. Periodic revies by ALCO relating to the liquidity posilion, plan of aclion for incremental fund raising and stress tests of the ALIVI position

inveslments in units of mutual funds (Liquid and/or Ovemight Schemes), Fixed Deposits with high rated scheduled Commercial Eanks and undrawn Bank lines.

44.3.'1. Liquidity ntios

Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk (in accordance with RBI Circular - RBI/20'1 9-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.00'U2019-20), as on lrarch 31 ,2022 as below.

a. Funding ConcentBtion based on significant counterparty

'Particula6

Number of significant counter farties

'Amounl

i Percenlage offunding total borowings

As at March
3'l,2022

1,25,205.33:

96.7ao/o:

b. Top 10 borowings (by counterparty)

Particula6 As at March:
31,2022:

1,29,377.53:

99,034.58:

76.55V.:

c. Funding ConcentEtion by lnstrument #

As at Maroh
31. 2022 % of Total

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) 55.90%

d. Stock Ratios

.''
iTolal Boffowings

Top 10 Bonowings

_Top 
10 as a percentage of total borrowings

72,315.93

ico..uili"r p"pui - 
"s 

a perc;ntage oltotat tiauitities i
Commercial Paper - as a percentage of total assets

NCD (original maturity < lyear) - as a percentage of total public funds

: NcD (original maturity < lyear) - as a percentage of total liabililies '
, NCD (original maturity < lyear) - as a percentage of tolal assels

: Olher Short Term Debt - as a percenlage of total public funds

:Other Short Term Debl - as a percenlage of total liabililies *

Other Short Term Debl - as a percentage oflolal assels

'Total Liabililies does not include Total Equity.

NA

Nil

Nit

NA

Nit

Nit

NA

16.550/o

'13.520/0

o
L

drt

Murnbai
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITEO
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 44: Risk management

€. lnstitutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Liquidity Risk l,lanagemenl Policy oflhe Company is approved by the Eoard of Directors of lhe Company.

Executive Officer, Chief Financial officer, senior Vice President - Treasury.

44.3.2, Analysis offinancial assets and liabilities by remaining contEctual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe undiscounled cashflow of Debt Securities and Borowings (otherthan debt securities):

AS ef

ParticulaF March 31,
2021 -

: Pe.tatad
/Vithin 1 Year

Jver 1 year to 2 Years

Over 2 years to 3 Years

Over 3 years to 5 Years

Over 5 years

1 Year

Over 1 years to 3 Years

Over 3 years to

,Above 5 Years

: TOTAL

97,122.O0 59,597.31

28,552.13 61,878.86

13,'t41.89 23.11? !!
1,789.50 5,759.41

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cashflow of Tnde Payable and Other Financial Liabilitiesi

Notes:
'1. The company considers PuUCall option dates for the purpose of reporting maturity pattem of Borrowings including debt securities.

As at 3l March 2022 
N"r"r, rr, lizlt- n""t"t"a :

Other:
Tnde Tmdei

Payablei
Financial:
Llabllitles:

Other
Financial

Liabilities

2,056.12

1,510.39

1,201.04

'1,828.O8

890 16

309.63

407.68

1,465.74

161.58

88.10

4,062.29 1,161.5E: 4,22E.9'l I

For issued llnancial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount oflhe guarantee is allocated to the earliest period in which the guarantee could be €lled.

Carrying Value on demand Less than Over 3, Particula6 Over 3:

months &i months &: upto 3
upto 6r upto 1 year:

monthsi :

& upto
Totali

1,!9.5,14..:
1,{q9,74 i

i Other undram commitments to lend
Total commitments

827.'t4 827.14
827.14

o
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements forthe year end€d March 31, 2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 44: Risk management

44.4 Market Risk

reflecls the interdependency between risk variables. Nortrading positions are managed and monitored using olher sensitivity analyses.

44.4.1 Total market risk exposuc

As at 31 March 2022 As at March 31, 2021 - Restated
j Primary Risk

Non-tmdedt sensitivity

n*i

ParticulaF

Traded
Non-tEded

risk
Carrying:
amount:

Traded

Assets

Cash and €sh

Other bank balances

Lo,ans

Financial investments at FVTPL

.... .. 

o"''u"t'uu n:"n"'al instruments

Trade receivables

9,042.37 5153.22

4,842.05 25,807 .81

304.60 0.01

1,37,971.77 1,20,766.65

lmpact on:
equity:

(12.6e)

(25.38)

I,042.37

4,842.05

595.26

304.60

1,37,971.77

2,891.65

1,55,647.70

lnterest Rate

lnterest Rate

lnterest Rate /

88,842.98

.58161

26.65

595.26

595.26

6.26

6.26

2022

lmpact on
equity

18.02

36.03

(18.02)

(36.03)

13,524.22

(13,524.22',t

ilnterest Rate /
iEquity Price

rlnterest Rate

)

:lnterest Rate /
:Foreign
iExchange

:lnterest Rate

:lnterest Rate

'1,028.00:

'1,33,908.11:

lmpact

befoE

24.08

48.15

(24.08)

(48.15)

i Other Financial Assets

Total

44.4.1 Market risk non-tEding

44.4.1.1 lnteest Ete risk

Change in lnteest Rate

iarricJtae

2,891.65

1,55,052.44

8,255.93

'1,954.13

1,62,237.75

1,954.13

1,53,981.82

8,255.93

8,255.93

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Trade payables

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debl securities)

otherfinancial liabilities

Tolal

79,297.94

50,079.59

3,496.32

1,028.00

79,297.94

50,079.59

3,496.32

'1,33,901.E6

lnterest Rate /
Foreign
Exchange

.:
-:

26.65 :

4,228.95 :lnterest Rate

1,3s,51g.24

fixed rate borrowings, hence not exposed interest raie risk.

l

25 basis point doM

:50
:25

i50

basis point doM

basis point up

basis point up

9.50

18.99

(e.50)

(18.ee)

Borrowings wilh floating rate struclure has been considered for interest rate sensilivi9 analysis

44,4.1.2 Curency risk

exchange borowings is hedged fully to safeguard againsl exchange rate risk in accordance wilh the company's Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy.

ParticulaE

External Commercial Borrowings (ECB)

USD

As at
March 31, 2021

IJSD in lakhs

225.81 .. 16,509.14 ,

(225.81) (16,s09.14)

Restated i

Amount:

Derivative Financial lnstrument'

represents the notional amounl ofthe derivative financial instrument

in lakhst

178.44 |

(178.44)l

dit
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to tinancial statements forth6 yearended March 31, 2022
(a in Lakhs)

Note 44: Risk management

i14.4.1.3 Equity prioe risk

The Company does not have any exposure to equity price risk.

44.4.1.4 OpaBtional and buslness risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from exlernal evenls.

conducted on a periodical basis to provide assurance regarding lhe effectiveness ofthe company's readiness.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 44A: Restatement of Comparative lnformation relating to material transactions

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2O2'I - RESTATED

Particulars

I ASSETS
1 :Financial assets

,Cash and cash equivalents
; Bank balance other than above
; Derivative fi nancial instruments
:Receivables

Trade receivables
: Loans
:lnvestments
iOther financial assets
:

rNon-financial assets
:Deferred tax assets (net)

:Property, Plant and Equipment
i Right-of-use assets
iOther intangible assets
tOther non-fi nancial assets

i'Total assets

. II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

, 1 :Financial liabilities

previously:
reported:

Notes

22
81

5,453.
807

l

!.

,

j

,

As

0.01
1,21,690.53

8,255.93
1 ,954.13

4,524.06
172.13

2,636.39
46.25

979.33

1,71,519.79

1,118.55

88,842.98
41,285.73
4,019.25

230.09
1,36,329.08

],7r,5]9,79,

I

ustments

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31,
2021 -

5,453.22
25,807..81

0.01
1,20,766.65

8,255.93
1,954.13

4,524.06
172.13

2,636.39
+o.zJ

1,800.06
32,214.04
34,O14.10

Adj

25,

i

I

1

I-t

i
-l

j

(923.ss) l

:

:

-a
-j

-:
I

(e23.88)l

2

979.33

1,70,595.91

43.03 1 ,1 61 .58

209.70

88,842.98
41,285.73
4,228.95

230.09
252.73 1,36,581.81

26.6526.65

icro enterprises and small

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Other fi nancial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-fi nancial liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

:Total liabilities and equity

2

3

2
805.83805.83

6

6

6,355.36
28-,835.35
35,190.71

(4,555.30)
3,378.69

(1,176.61)

(923.88) 1,70,595.91

nnunoai

,t



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

Revenue from operations
(i) lnterest income
(ii) Fee and commission income
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes

(l) Total revenue from operations

Other income

:(lll) Total income (l + ll)

For the yea
ended March 31,

2021
Adjustments

32,673.25
341.22

(1,s83.31)

103.90
33,118.37 (r,e83.31)

1 95.39
33,313.76

(272.37)
(1e0.2e)

For the yeari
ended March 3,1,j
2021,- Restatedl

30,689.94
341.22
103.90

3.t,135.06 :

i
195.39

31,330.45

Particulars Notes

1&4

Expenses
(i) Finance cost
(ii) lmpairment on flnancial instruments
(iii) Employee beneflt expense
(iv) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
(v) Other expenses

Total expenses

Profig(loss) for the period from continuing operations

Profi U(loss) from discontinued operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.)

1

4

(1,983.31)

13,571 .68
12,731.21
7,376.04

968.47

13,571.68

86 (344.05)
(806.71)37,736.26 i

(4,422.5O)l (1,1 76.60)

(r,r76.60)

(3,009.04) (1,178.04)

(3,009.04) (1,178.041 (4,'187.08)

:

i(v) Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll - lV)

(Vl) Exceptional items

(Vll) Profit / (loss) before tax (V - Vl)

('/ilr) Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Earlier year adjustments
(3) Deferred tax charge / (credit)

(tv)

(tx)

(x)

(xt)

(xil)

6

(4,422.501

3.46),41

-a

(5,5ss.10):

-a
(1,412.02)t

(4, i 87.08) i

i

l) ProfiU(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)

(lX) Profit / (loss) for the year (Vll - Vlll)

(X) Other comprehensive income
A ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan

lncome tax impact

Total (A)

B ltems that will be classified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge

Net Gain / (Loss) for the year
lncome tax impact

Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedge

Total (B)
Other comprehensive income (A + B)

(Xl) Total comprehensive income (lX + X)

o

(5.71
(5.71

(5.71

(5.71)
(5.71)
1.441.44

1.44

(0.53)

013
(0.40)

(1,1

(0.40)

{6.1 1)

(3,015.15)

(16.72)
(16.72)

1.44 (4:67)

(6.
(6.

(4, 191

Note for Restatement
1. lmpact of change in the lnterest calculation as per contractually agreed terms of repayment schedule (earlier interest was computed on
'daily' basis) & Modification loss (net of ECL).

2. ProvisionofGSTexpenses,formingpartofdirectlyattributablecostamortisedaspertheEffectivelnterestRate(ElR)methodinrespectof
loan asset.

3. Appropriation adjustment of the principal amount relating to the change in interest calculation referred to in point no 1.

4. Directly attributable transaction cost (Referrral commission & GST on YP /Alliance Commission)with respect to the loan asset has been
considered as a part of EIR

5. Directly attributable transaction cost (Sales lncentive)with respect to the loan asset has been considered as a part of EIR
6. Break up of Movement in Other equity provided below

Reconciliation of other equity as at March 31,2021 & Statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the
ended March 31, 2021



Particulars

As previously reported (A)

lmpact of correction

lnterest lncome recognition (Net of ECL)
Modification loss accounting and restructured loans (Net of ECL)

Amortisation of Loan Acquisition Costs
Tax Provision

Reclassified from Equity to SOCIE
CCPS reclassified from Equity share capital to Other Equity

lncrease/(Decrease) by (B)

Restated (A+B)

Other equity
restated as of

March31,2021

28,835.35

Statement ol
profit and loss

for the year
ended March 31,

2021

(3,009.04)

(2e6.61)
(1,316.00)

436.00

4,555.30

3,378.69

32.214.O4

Othel
comprehensive
income for th€

year ended
March 31, 2021

1.44

1.44

G.67\

(6.1 1 )

(2e6.61)
(1,316.00)

436.00
(1.44)

(1,178.05)

(4.1 87.09)

Munbai



45.2 lnvestments

PartlculaF March gl

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to flnanclal statements forthe year ended March 31, 2022
(? in Lakhs)

Note 45: Regulatory dlsclosures

45.1 Capltal

, excess provislons dudng the year

r(iv) Closing Balanc

45.3 Derivatives

45.3.1 Foruard Rate Agreement / lnterest Rate Swap

, ParticulaE

The notional principal of swap agreements
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their

obligations under the agreements

Particula6

r No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVS

:gponsgreq p-y tl!g NqFc
.totat amount ofexposures retained by the NBFC
as on the date of balance sheet

On-balan€ sheet exposures

to comply with [rRR

riii) Collateral required by theCompany upon entering into swaps

!_v).-c_,qncentF!i9n.-ol9f99i!.t_9f ariging l.r::gn lhe 9W_?p9........... ....... ..
v) The tair value of the swap book

45.3.2 Exchange Traded lnterest Rate Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any Exchange Traded lnterest Rate Derivatives.

45.3.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

595.26 -26.65

Match 31,2022

lnterest rate'
derivativesi

4,24i.OA i

1e7,-5_9

March 31,

uaictr 5t,

March 31, 2021

1,264.511,149.01

Particular Curency:
Derivativesi

r peny?!ive9 (N_o!gn?l Ptitdp-al.Ang!,tnt)
:a) For hedging

a) A99et (+)
b) Liability C).
Credit Exposure
Unhedged Exposures
- This is the MTM movement for Embedded Derivative

45.4 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

i) The Company has entered into Securilisation transaclions for the year ended Match31,2022.

11,892.29

- Restated

lnterest ratei
deilvatlves

4,249.0o

No. / Am;unt in
Rs lakhsl

sl

e,

* First Loss
* Others

1,472.96

ii) Details of linancial assets sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:
The Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisatlon/Reconstruction Company forAsset Reconstruction for the year ended March31,2022
and March 31, 2021.

iii) Details of assignment transactions
The Company has not assigned any financial assets for the year ended March 31 ,2022 and lvlarch 31, 2021

vi) Details of non-performing assets purchased / sold
a) Details ol non-performing financial assets purchased

ci;i

1,{irrnbdi
.:

(y

t

l.

r



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31,2022
({ ln Lakhs}

Note 45: Regulatory disclosures

:ParliculaF

1

Match31,2022) March 31,

(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year

(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
(b) Aggregate outstanding

Details of non-performing fi nancial assets sold
March 3'1,2022i March 31,202',1

:1 . No of accounts sold

i2. Aggregate outstanding
3. Aggregate consideration received

45,5 Exposures

i) The Company has no exposure to real estate sector during the March 31, 2022 and Matdl31,2021.
ii) The Company has no exposure to capital market during the March3'l,2022andMad131,2021.
iii) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

During the year, the Company has not exceeded SGL & GBL limits as prescribed under NBFC Regulation.

iv) Unsecured Advances
During the year, the Company has not given any advance against collateral of rights, li@nses, authority, etc.

45.6 - Miscellaneous

45.6.1 - Registratlon obtalned from otherfinancial sector regulatoB
RBI registration no B-13.O2O77 

:

: IRDA registration no . CA0472 :
,Company ldentiflcation Number(ClN) U5'1504MH'1993PTC2515M

45.6.2 - Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulator
During the year ended March 31, 2022, no penalties have been levied by any regulator on the Company.

45.6.3 - Related Party Transaction
Refer note no. 40 for transactions with related party.

45.6.5 - Remuneration of Directors
No Remuneration or Sitting fees paid or provided to non-executive directors during the year ended March31,2022 and lrarch 31, 2021.

45.7.1 - Provisions and contingencies

Break up of'Provisions and Contingencies'
shom underthe head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
Provisions for depreciation on lnvestment

iotal Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances
of the appli€ble NBFC

I

Match31,2022:':
March 31, 2021 -i

Restatedi

2,O23.Provision towards Stage 3 5,189.80 i

:Provision made towards lncome tax 223.15
:Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)
Provision for Slandard Assets 698.08

45.7.2 " Draw DoM from Reserues
During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from Reserues.

45.7.3 - Concentration of Advances, Expenses & NPAs

45.7.3.1 - Concentration of Advances

March 31, 2022r
1,838.94

1.19%

(866.s8)

o
L

e

t14urnbaj
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Percentage

sector (As certifled by management and retied by AudttoFl i1X1"^ffi""""::

NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(t ln Lakhs)

Note 45: Regulatory disclosures

45.7.3.2 - Concentration of Exposures

iTotal Exposure to twenty largest borowers /customers
rPercentage of Exposures to twenty largest bonowers / customers to
:Total Exposure of the appli€ble NBFC on bonowers / customers

45.7,3.3 - Concentration of Stage 3 assets

:Tq!g! Exposlrqe !9

45.7.3.4 - Sector-wise Stage 3 assets

45.7.4 - Movement of Stage 3 assets

ParticulaF

:sr€ndif_q asgets_l

i Opening balan@

March31.2022 March 31,2021 -
' Kestated
4.71o/o' 2.74o/o:::

a,497.29 4,136.88 ,

380.66

that

4,535.51

6,500.1 8

5,191,e9

12 1

605

616

PrNisions made during lhe year
' wriie-or I write-oacr oi eiiess piovislons

Closing balane

45.8 OveEeas Assets (forthose with Joint Ventures and Subsldlaries abroad)

Other Partner
iName of the Joint Venture/ Subsidiary the JV
The company does not
thence- nol appli€ble.

have any joint venture or subsidiary abroad,
NA

45.9 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
The company does not have any off balan@ sheet SPV sponsored.

45.10 Dlsclosure of Complalnts

relied by

8,295.95

980.10
2,773.86

3,309.33

3,156.78

5,522.09
(3,490-e1

5,1 87.96

Country Totai ACseti

NA NA

cdit

Mumbai
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3'l,2022
(a in Lakhs)

Note 45: Regulatory disclosures (continued)

45.11 Asset Liability Management (ALM) Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

rParticulars

Over 1 day to 7 days

,over g oays to i+ days

I

Advances;Deposits

Asset
classification

per lnd AS
109

(2)

Stage 1

Stage 2

i

Borrowings':

......... 9,115,s,...
1:28.3.62 

i.

3,303.85 :

1 0,585.18

3,789.01

26,428.52

36,529.50

Net carrying
Amountl

(5)=(3)-(4)

1,25,295.44
6,176.'t2

1,31,471.56

Foreign,
Currency:

. assets:

Foreign Currency
liabilities

.Over 15 days to 30 days

.Over 1 month to 2 monlhs

,Over 6 months to 1 Year

:Over 1 year to 3 Years

iOver 3 years to 5 Years 
.

'Over 5 Years

Total

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

38,490.97

37,255.49

10,210.86

222.31 :

Performing Assets
Standard
Standard

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard"

Total

1,37,97't.78 :

, Loss AllowancesGross catrutno
lProvisronsl as

amount as oer""'--"'r;;E'"0'''"o,"Xf 
l[3

(3) (41 
.

1.30.2:82.s2 , +,bbZ.Oe. r

.'8,760.99 2,sa4.87 |

1,39,043.52 . 7,571.95

Notes:
1. Borrowings include debt securities and borrowings other than debt securities (including External Commercial Borrowings).

2. The Company considers Puvcall option dates for the purpose of reporting maturity pattern of Borrowings including debt securities.

3. ln the preparation of the above disclosure, certain assumption have been considered by the management which have been relied upon by the auditors.

45,12 Disclosure as per RBI notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.10612019-20 dated March 13, 2020 & RBI/DNBN2016-17145
DNBR,PD.008i03.10.'l'1912016-17 dated March 03,2022. A comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances
made under lnd AS 109'Financial lnstruments'

(1)

Provisions:
required as:
per IRACP:

norms:
(6) :

:

s21.1c :

35.04 l

Difference
between lnd AS

109 provisions and
IRACP norms

(7): (4)-(6) -

4,465.95
2,549.83
7,015.78Subtotal 556.1

Stage 3 '16,874.30 10,374.13

17,946.08

6,500.'t7 ,oo/

1,55,917 2,243.60,37,971.73 702-4A15,

"lncludes asset classified as doubtful assets since specific identification/classification is not available. Accordingly RBI Provision is

computed considering rate applicable for Substandard assets. Further, as per Company policy loan assets are written off at 240 DPD,

hence loans written off are not included above.

45.'12.1 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBU2021-2A32DOR.STR.REC.'12l21 .04.0481202'l-22 dated May 5, 2021

During the year, the Company has done One time Restructuring of loans amounting to Rs.24,378.54 lakhs (cases: 3,472).



NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(t in Lakhs)

Note 46: Segment lnformation

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, since the nature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and return
profiles hence they are collectively operating under a single segment. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.

Note 47: Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary offinancial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all ofthe transferred
financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities.

17,225.87

15,928.75

Securitisations

Carrying amount of the transferred assets (held as collateral)

Carrying amount of associated liabilities

Note 48: Registration of Gharge

Company has created charges within the statutory period

Note 49: Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

(A) Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (lvhether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the lntermediary shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(B) Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements.

For the year
ended March

31,2022

As per our report of even date

For ASA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

per Prateet Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 402631
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 26,2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For the year
ended March

31,2021

Dhruv Khaitan
Chairman
(DlN 00002584)
Place: Mumbai

Piyush Khaitan
Managing Director
(DtN 00002579)
Place: Bengaluru

Deepak Goswami
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

3,536.28

3,421.36

Arun Nayyar
Whole - time Director & CEO
Place: Mumbai

Tanushri Yewale
Company Secretary
(M.No A31273)

Place: Mumbai
cdit

Mumbai

t

Date: May 26,2022





Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (as required in terms of paragraph 18 of
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bankl Directions, 2016

Amount in Lakhs

Total

5 Borrower group-wise classification ofassets financed as in (21 and (3) above
Please see Note 2 below

1 Related Parties**
a. Subsidiaries
b. Companies in the same group
c. Other related parties

2 Other than related parties

6 lnvestor group-wise classification of all investmenG (current and long terml in shares and securities (both quoted and

unquoted):
Please see nole 3 below

Category

" As per Accounting Standard of lCAl (Please see Note 3)

Category

Secured

7 Other information

i. Gross Non-Performing Assels
a. Related Parties
b. Other than related parties

ii. Net Non-Performing Assets
a. Related Parties
b. Other than related parties

1 Related Parties**
a. Subsidiaries
b. Companies in the same group
c. Other related parties

2 Otherthan related parties

Total
1 ,37 ,971.77
1 .37 .97',t .77

lJnsecured

Particulars

iii Assets acouired in satisfaction of debt

Notes:
1 As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 1998.

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
lmporlanl Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direclions, 2016.

3 All lndian Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by lCAl are applicable including for valuation of investments and

other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debts. However, market value in respect of quoted inveslments and break

up/ fair value/ NAV in respect of unquoled investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long

term or current in category (4) above.

Total

o Mumbai

t

Market Value/ Break
up of fair value or

NAV

Book Value (Net of
Provisions)

'16,874.30

6,500,1 I
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